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INTRODUCTION
This is the very first
NIHSS Annual Report
that we have prepared
for presentation to the
national Department of
Higher Education and
Training (DHET).
We are indeed honoured to be
presenting this report. While it is
not yet a comprehensive annual
report, it represents a key milestone
in realising the vision of the Minister
of Higher Education and Training,
Dr Bonginkosi Blade Nzimande: to
establish a robust post-apartheid
higher education system in which the
humanities and social sciences (HSS)
play a major role.

HISTORICAL CONTEXT
The creation of the NIHSS to dynamise
the HSS fields of study in South Africa’s
higher education system emerged out
of a wide-ranging consultative process
inaugurated in 2010 by Minister
Nzimande. At that stage, the Minister
appointed a Task Team, under the
leadership of Prof. Ari Sitas of the
University of Cape Town, to develop a
Charter for the Humanities and Social
Sciences, aimed at strengthening
research and teaching in these fields.
This was necessitated by the Minister’s
concern that there has been a decline
in research and teaching of the
humanities and social sciences since
1994, with the focus having shifted
to natural sciences, engineering, and
other technology studies.
Following a rigorous and
comprehensive research and

consultation process with a wide array
of local stakeholders, as well as with
local and international centres of
excellence, the Task Team completed
its report by the end of June 2011 and
subsequently presented a Charter for
the Humanities and Social Sciences
report to the Minister.
In May 2012, the DHET and the
Minister announced the acceptance
of most of the Charter report’s
recommendations. This included one
of the key recommendations: the
creation of a new and dynamic ‘entity’
in the form of a National Institute to
redress the deficits and coordinate the
programmes, projects, collaborations
and activities in the higher education
landscape. In his budget speech of April
2012, Minister Nzimande indicated
approval for the establishment of a
National Institute for the Humanities and
Social Sciences (NIHSS).
In October 2012, the Ministerial
Special Project on the Future of
the Humanities and Social Sciences
formed a steering committee
to put in place the process for
establishing the NIHSS, and a
management committee to manage
the transition until the NIHSS had
been promulgated and its Board had
been appointed. The management
committee consisted of a director,
deputy director and three staff
members. While the key focus of
the committees was establishing the
NIHSS as soon as possible, they also
initiated some of the key projects
that would eventually be managed by
the NIHSS.
The appointment of the NIHSS Board,
in March 2014, led to the abolishment
of the committees. The director
and deputy director positions were
abolished with the appointment of the
CEO (November 2014).

THE NIHSS STARTS ITS
OPERATIONS IN THE
2014/2015 FINANCIAL YEAR
Although the NIHSS was formally
established on 05 December 2013, its
operations could only formally start
once the executive team had been
appointed. By the beginning of January
2015, the CEO, Dr Mosoetsa, and her
executive team members were in place,
and the NIHSS operations could begin
in earnest.
Their key priorities in January–March
2015 were to structure and staff the
NIHSS, as well as to establish the critical
policies, processes and procedures to
enable the organisation’s operations.
At the same time, this team continued
the focus on managing the key projects
that had been started by the staff who
previously managed the Ministerial
Special Project.
This Annual Report, therefore, relates
to the period 2014/2015. Since there
was no formal strategic plan with set
targets against strategic objectives in
place prior to the start of this reporting
period, it has been decided to use the
actual performance scores achieved
during 2014/2015 as the baseline
scores against which the targets for the
2015/2016 year could be set.
This 2014/2015 Annual Report also
introduces the operational plan and
targets set against the Institute’s
strategic objectives for 2015/2016.
This would be the first year in the
five-year cycle of the implementation
plan of the NIHSS Strategic Plan for
2015–2020.
The actual performance achieved
in 2014/2015 against the NIHSS
KPIs is, therefore, indicated as a
baseline. The NIHSS Strategic Plan
for 2015–2020 provided the first
opportunity to set predetermined
targets for a full financial year. For this
reason, 2015/2016 will be the first
comprehensive annual reporting cycle
for this management team.

Annual Report 2014 / 2015
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WHO WE ARE

OUR MISSION

The NIHSS is a statutory
body that aims to
contribute significantly to
ensuring the excellence,
integrity and dynamism of
the humanities and social
sciences, not only in South
Africa but also in Africa,
through its core functions
of enhancing and
coordinating scholarship,
research and ethical
practice in the HSS fields.

Our mission at the NIHSS is to redress

OUR VALUE
STATEMENT AND
GUIDING PRINCIPLES

existing deficits and to coordinate
programmes, projects, collaborations
and activities in the HSS disciplines
within and through existing and future
public universities.
We will fulfil this mission, alone and/or
in partnership with our stakeholders,

We have adopted the following five
values and principles to guide our
work and conduct in fulfilling the
mission and mandate of the NIHSS:
1. The principle of cooperation
and the establishment of

by:
•

communities of scholarship
From the Doctoral Schools to the

Providing strategic and intellectual

Catalytic Research Programme

resources to the higher education

(CRP), cooperation and networking,

sphere within the humanities and

clusters and hubs are seen as a

social sciences; ;
•

priority.

Advancing research, teaching and
learning by ensuring collaboration
with and/or coordination of

2. The principle of norm-driven
internationalisation

the work of higher education

OUR VISION

We live in a world that is more

institutions;
•

interrelated and entangled than

Advising the Minister of Higher

ever before. Academics travel,

Education and Training on matters

students are on the move,

relating to the Institute’s strategic
Our central vision at the NIHSS is to
become the epicentre of scholarship,
pedagogy, community practice and
social responsibility for the humanities

ideas circulate and international

objectives, or to higher education

epistemic communities get

generally; and
•

stronger at the expense of their

Advocating equity, justice and

national equivalents. There are very

social responsibility

few universities of note that have

and social sciences, not only in South

not placed internationalisation as

Africa but also in Africa.

one of their strategic goals. We are
advocating a focused and normdriven internationalisation that
strengthens Africa-wide, South–
South collaborations in dialogue
with our “Northern” counterparts.
.
3. The principle of social
responsibility and equity
We have to be socially responsive
to the socio-economic problems
that face South Africa and its
citizens today. This is in recognition
of the forms of scholarship in

04
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the humanities and how these
relate and connect to the lived

OUR MANDATE

experiences of the majority in the
country and on the continent. It is
an intellectual project premised not
on mere critique but also seeking
to reconstruct grand narratives and
possibilities for change.
4. The principle of functional
differentiation as opposed to
resource differentiation
Our higher education and research
system needs differentiation not on
the basis of resource inequality but
rather based on a differentiation
of visions, of focuses and priorities.
We need to be flexible enough to
allow for pluralism and diversity,
be generous enough to allow
competition between priorities

Our mandate at the NIHSS is to
develop and set up the institutional
and logistical framework for the
envisioned higher education institution
for the HSS.
Our role is, broadly, to enhance and
support the HSS in South Africa and
beyond; to advise government and
civil society on HSS-related matters;
to advocate equity, justice and social
responsibility; and to increase and
guide academic and public discourse
about the crucial social issues that
face us as citizens, in order to help
influence the character of the South
African community and to create a
more humane, responsible and just
society.

and visions, and still be able to
cooperate. The key point is simply
a diversity of visions that should
be expressed within any wellfunctioning system.
5. The principle of transformative
relevance
Any Catalytic Research Project or
Working Group initiative has to
open up new areas of research,
which in turn would have a
multiplier effect on future research
projects and serious transformative
implications for the curriculum in
the HSS.

The NIHSS, which was established
on 05 December 2013 with the
publication of Government Gazette
No. 37118, is a juristic person,
in accordance with the scope or
application as contemplated in
Regulations 2 and 3.
Specific legislation that enables and
directs our mandate includes the
Higher Education Act (1997) and
the Skills Development Act (1998),
as well as government’s National
Development Plan 2030.
Higher Education Act, 1997
(No. 101 of 1997)
This Act provides for a unified and
nationally planned system of higher
education. The Higher Education Act
and the Education White Paper 3: A
Programme for the Transformation
of Higher Education formed the basis
for the transformation of the higher
education sector, with implementation
being guided by the National Plan for

Higher Education (2001) and the 2013
White Paper for Post-School Education
and Training.
Skills Development Act, 1998
(No. 97 of 1998)
This Act provides for an institutional
framework to devise and implement
national, sector and workplace
strategies to develop and improve the
skills of the South African workforce,
to integrate these strategies within
the National Skills Framework, to
provide for learnerships that lead
to the recognition of occupational
qualifications and to provide for the
financing of skills development by
means of a skills development levy and
the National Skills Fund (NSF).
.
National Development Plan 2030 (NDP)
Government’s NDP offers a long-term
perspective on eliminating poverty
and reducing inequality by 2030, by
growing an inclusive economy, building
capabilities, enhancing the capacity of
the state, and promoting leadership
and partnerships throughout
society. While the achievement of
the objectives of the NDP requires
progress on a broad front, three
priorities stand out:
•

Raising employment through faster
economic growth;

•

Improving the quality of education,
skills development and innovation;
and

•

Building the capability of the
state to play a developmental,
transformative role.

Our mandate positions the NIHSS to
contribute significantly to the NDP
going forward.

Annual Report 2014/2015
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OUR SOURCES
OF FUNDING

OUR OPERATING
CONTEXT

•

Limited resources for scholarships
and research for the humanities
and social sciences, and thus more
demand for resources from the

The NIHSS receives its operations
budget (or base-funding) directly

OUR SERVICE DELIVERY
ENVIRONMENT

from the DHET. These funds used to
be administered through our fund

The NIHSS operates within an

holder, the Centre for Education Policy

environment marked by the following:

Development (CEPD). Since November
2014, Deloitte Consulting has been

•

A neglected humanities and social
sciences;

fulfilling this task.
•

A humanities and social sciences

We receive designated funds from

that have a weakened role post-

the National Skills Fund (NSF) for the

1994;

Doctoral Schools and Scholarships

•

A subdued academic voice around

Programme, which the NIHSS runs in

issues such as economic and social

collaboration with the South African

development, health, energy, rural

Humanities Deans’ Association

development, and education and

(SAHUDA). These projects and

training;

scholarship funds are transferred

•

A student movement devoid of

directly from the NSF to the National

mentorship and guidance from

Student Financial Aid Scheme (NSFAS),

academics;

which administers these student funds

•

The absence of a large and
relatively coherent and social

on behalf of the NIHSS.

movement striving to attain a
common goal; and

The Catalytic Research Programme
(CRP) is funded from the Ministerial

•

A number of serious socioeconomic challenges facing South

Special Projects Fund.

Africa and her citizens in a postapartheid era.
Over the next five years, our service
delivery as well as our operating
environment will be affected by the
following external factors:
•

Increase in number of students
requiring postgraduate funding;

•

Limited supervision capacity,
especially in historically black
universities; and

06
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Institute.

OUR ORGANISATIONAL
ENVIRONMENT
The NIHSS was established on 05
December 2013, and a Board was
appointed by 27 March 2014. The
NIHSS Board, under the leadership
of Prof. Ari Sitas, has since then held
three meetings to provide strategic
direction to the Institute.
The Board appointed Dr Sarah
Mosoetsa as the CEO of the NIHSS
in November 2014, and three senior
executives – Dr Nthabiseng Motsemme
(Director Academic), Ms Yolanda
Davids (Director Administration) and
Mr Kibiti Lephoto (Chief Financial
Officer). The CFO joined the Institute in
January 2015. By the end of the period
under review, 14 NIHSS staff members
(out of a planned staff complement
of 22) had joined the NIHSS. The
outstanding positions will be filled as
soon as possible in the 2015/2016
financial year, since it is important for
the Institute to improve its internal
control and strengthen its human
capacity in order to effectively fulfil its
mandate.
The Institute has been sub-letting
office space from the CEPD at nominal
rates in Empire Road, Parktown. It
is currently finalising a tender for
procurement of its own office space in
St Andrews Road, Parktown.

The NIHSS administration function

The following implementation and

Figure 1: The NIHSS business process

(comprising financial management,

operational programmes exists in the

value chain

payroll administration and HR support)

NIHSS:

was outsourced to the CEPD until
October 2014. In November 2014,

1. Academic Directorate with the

following a competitive tender process

following programmes: Doctoral

led by the DHET, the contract for

Schools Programme, Catalytic

the service was awarded to Deloitte

Research Programme (CRP), African

Consulting.

Pathways Programme (APP),
Humanities Hubs, Working Groups

Approval has been obtained from

for Academic Collaboration,

National Treasury for the NIHSS

and the National Mentorship

to open and operate its own bank

Programme (NMP) of the NIHSS.

Pre-award process
• Call for applications
• Administration screening
• Technical screening

account. The Institute is registered
with SARS for PAYE, UIF and SDL.

2. Administration and Corporate

Finance, Supply Chain and HR policies

Services Directorate, taking

will be presented to the Board for

care of the following functions:  

approval in the 2015/2016 financial

HR, legal services, marketing and

year.

communication.

OUR
ORGANISATIONAL
STRUCTURE

3. Finance Directorate, which
also takes care of supply chain

Award process
• Panel assessment and funding
recommendations
• Approvals

management and procurement.
(See also Figure 2: The NIHSS

The organisational structure of the
NIHSS, as at 31 March 2015, was
approved by the NIHSS Board on 27
February 2015. Minor revisions have
subsequently been made to reporting
lines and job titles, and additions have
been made in order to attract the right
people at the right level so that the

organisational structure as at 31 March
2015.)
Post-award process
• Inform recipients
• Transfer funds
• Monitor progress

NIHSS can deliver on its mandate. For
the period under review, the NIHSS
had a staff complement of 14, with the
remaining 8 positions expected to be
filled before the end of 2015.

Annual Report 2014/2015
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Figure 2: The NIHSS’ organisational structure as at 31 March 2015:

Executive Office
CEO

Academic
Director

Strategy &
planning

Doctoral
Schools
Programme

HR

Finance
support and
admin

Corporate
governance

African
Pathways
Programme
(APP)

Information
management

SCM

Monitoring &
evaluation

Catalytic
Research
Programme
(CRP)

Communication &
Marketing

Humanities
Hubs

Legal services

Working
Groups
Programme

National
Mentorship
Programme
(NMP)
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“It is with some delight that I spent a
few hours reading through this Annual
Report. It is rewarding to see something
incubated, formed and emerging.”

Pr o

f. A

ri S i

tas, C h

S
a ir p e r s o n N I H

CHAIRPERSON’S
REPORT
The Institute has a clear and complex
challenge: in these betwixt-andbetween times, between the crumbling
of the world’s last racial autocracy and
an uncharted democratic future, it
has to find the resources, the method
and the language to enhance the
humanities and social sciences fields
in the country. Some of the challenges
facing our fields I addressed during our
Liliesleaf critical reflection on the legacy
of the Freedom Charter and the need
for moral integrity.
Ironically, it is in those fields that the
clarity, scholarship and vision ought to
be found to help us leave the vestiges
of the former and get to the latter;
that is, from a regrettable past to an
undisclosed destination in the future.

10
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And it has to do so with the patience

The worst challenge was and is to

demanded of real scholarship and the

convince ourselves that the people

restlessness of a student in rebellion.

here, on this tip of the African continent,

It was clairvoyant of Ben Okri to

are the subjects of an enticing narrative

capture our challenge: in this journey

and not the scatterlings of some

of self-discovery, we have to walk over

external force. Or, as the late Andre

the abyss on the bridge we are both

Gunder Frank never ceased saying in

holding up and busy building.

his last years, “the non-people” who
had to wait for four Portuguese ships in

And there is another challenge: to

order to enter human history.

convince the broader public and
its pseudo-experts that there is an

So we sit here, barely three years since

enormous value in the fields we are

the Ministerial Special Project, initiated

trying to enhance, from creative writing

by Minister of Higher Education and

to musical composition, from statistical

Training Dr Bonginkosi Blade Nzimande,

methods to the studies of patriarchy.

was turned into an institute, scouring

The market-driven protocols that were

through a report of its achievements

introduced in haste in the mid-1990s

and its hard work.

have damaged both the reputation
and the functioning of our fields and of

At a personal level, I am humbled by

the foundational natural sciences. The

the response from our institutions,

crude instrumentalism that prevailed

colleagues, epistemic communities

during those days dulled clear thinking.

and students. What was seen as the
“absurdity” of the Charter idea seems all
of a sudden do-able if resources meet

up with the energy of existing

“decolonisation” is a serious mobilising

who relate to them. Whereas in the past

post apartheid aspirations. Our fields

force among our students. Some of them

we had our miners dance their “tribalism”

can learn to cooperate, our deans can

think “decoloniality” and read voraciously;

into anthropological scholarship,

work together despite competitive

others, unfortunately, are burning books.

now our entire civil society is dancing

pressures, and there are students

Addressing the ideational and moral

away for distant texts and footnotes.

available for and responsive to the

fields of a post-apartheid dispensation

Enhancing our humanities and the social

populating and flourishing of our fields.

will be a must, alongside serious

sciences will demand a non-exploitative

discussions about how to absent the

conversation with our country’s thinking

Furthermore, our partnerships in

sources of inequality that are threatening

and creative energies out there!

Africa are becoming real, our Southern

the very pillars of our co-existence.

connections are becoming stronger and

Finally, I would like to invite our

our conversations with countries in the

What is obvious to the Board, too, is that

academic community to read beyond

European Union and North America are

a remarkable effort in thinking, research

the report and engage critically with

becoming deeper. One of the responses

and teaching occurs outside the

the work listed and described: the

to our prompts that we needed to fly

university system as such, and that the

work on the pre-colonial period is

in new ways, was, “Oh yes, ‘if pigs could

connections between the Academy and

starting to produce scholarship on

fly’!” and another was, “Oh yes, ‘to cloud

creative work outside it are weakening.

prior entanglements, mapping social

cuckoo-land’!” We are indeed learning

formations, movements of people,

to fly – but as I have often said, if we are

I was made aware of a visual and

movements of material and symbolic

to do so, we need a well-crafted African

cultural renaissance out there haunted

goods that are Africa-wide and Afro-

body with Asian and Latin-American

by enticing images of subaltern

Asian. Hopefully, the transformation

wings in serious conversation and co-

agency and humanity and the most

of heritage sites into knowledge-

navigation with the North.

chilling record and documentation of

based Humanities Hubs will add

atrocities. There is a proliferation of

new dimensions to all this. There are

I do not want to repeat what is so

de-commodified knowledge, know-

scholars working on what was silenced,

obviously there in this Annual Report:

hows and forms of reciprocity, of

ignored, buried during the Colonial,

that the 120 PhDs already in the system

popular education and training for

Segregation and Apartheid periods.

at the end of 2014/2015 will become 420

transformation programmes. There

This ranges from social research, to

by 2016 and are getting settled in virtual

are, around legal and Section 9-linked

compositional and creative works.

doctoral schools within each province; that

initiatives, projects that are defining and

there are more than 20 catalytic research

redefining our understanding of social,

There are very strong networks working

and cooperative projects that involve

human, cultural, gender or individual

on issues around (to use a shortcut) the

new areas of research about the distant

rights. As academics write on the death

“national question” and on traditions of

past, the recent past, the present and the

of voluntarism, social, environmental

popular and grassroots education. The

future; that the pathways to Africa are

and development initiatives are

availability of concepts and analytical

beginning to be peopled by students from

brimming with voluntarism. There are

processes within the indigenous African

all over the continent; that our India and

remarkable womanist initiatives that

languages is being explored. But alongside

BRICS-related links will start flourishing as

provide critique, policy and exemplary

all this there are the seeds planted for

the main agreements are in place.

practices; not to mention the audacious

challenging takes on socio-economic and

creative, writing and performing world

ecological alternatives to our current

that is post-apartheid to its core.

accumulation regimes and protocols.

On behalf of the Board, I would like to

.

congratulate Dr Mosoetsa and her team
for the tireless work undertaken. But I

In and through each one, you will find

would also add a note of caution: we are

international students, volunteers and

living through a time that needs careful

academics, and you will be hard-pressed

reflection as the idea and banner of

to count barely past two dozen South

Prof. Ari Sitas

African humanities scholars and students

Chairperson: NIHSS Board

Annual Report 2014/2015
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DR SARAH MOSOETSA, NIHSS CEO, SHARES HER VIEWS ON
THE INSTITUTE’S FIRST ANNUAL REPORT – OPERATIONAL
PERFORMANCE FOR 2014/2015

“This report marks a significant coming of
age of a fledging Institute. The journey of
strengthening South Africa’s humanities at the
epicentre of knowledge production has begun!”
Dr Sarah Mosoetsa

Dr S

a ra h M o so etsa, C E O

CEO’S MESSAGE
As noted in the Preamble to the
Charter for Humanities and Social
Sciences, the Minister of Higher
Education and Training, Dr Bonginkosi
Blade Nzimande, had been concerned
for some time with the decline in the
research, teaching and funding of the
humanities and social sciences (HSS)
at higher education institutions since
1994 – with the focus having shifted
to natural sciences, engineering,
technology and business studies.
The Ministerial Special Project team
was tasked in 2010 with investigating
this and making recommendations
on how to revitalise, reignite and,
once again, strengthen research and
teaching in the HSS. One of the key
recommendations was the creation of
a National Institute for

12
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the Humanities and Social Sciences

African HSS that is at the epicentre

(NIHSS), which has now become a

of scholarship, pedagogy, community

reality.

practice and social responsibility in
Africa and beyond.

The NIHSS was established on 05
December 2013. Our mandate

Inclusive in our role is that of an

stipulates that we develop and

advisor to government and civil

set up both the institutional and

society on HSS-related matters, while

logistical framework to enhance and

advocating for equity, justice and social

support the HSS in higher education,

responsibility. We understand that

first in South Africa, and then also

increasing excellent academic research

beyond her borders. This mandate is

and debate about the crucial social

premised on the idea that research,

issues that face us as citizens will help

knowledge sharing, knowledge

us to tackle our country’s challenges

production and innovation know no

head-on. This will ultimately help in

boundaries. Indeed, it is through

shaping and influencing the character

meaningful collaboration and relevant

of the South African community and in

partnerships that we will enrich our

creating a more humane, responsible

knowledge base. Capacity-building,

and just society. Our contribution is

achieved by working with and funding

therefore broader in its impact – not

academics and postgraduate scholars,

simply limited to the higher education

is at the very centre of our directive.

sector but forming an integral part of

The aim is to deliver a South

South Africa’s imperative

transformation agenda. We appreciate

During the period under review, a

process through which we receive

that our goal serves to increase and

call for applications from students

our funding. Significant delays in

guide academic and public discourse

on the African continent to start their

the disbursement of the initial

about the crucial social issues that face

doctoral studies at South African

administration grant by the DHET and

us as modern-day citizens.

higher education institutions in

the non-transfer of the budgeted grant

2015 was published. We received

of R30 million by the National Skills

In our first year of existence, there

a great response, with more than

Fund (NSF) caused delays in the filling

are a number of achievements I

300 applications. In December 2014,

of positions and a total underspending

am excited and pleased to share,

after a thorough application review

of 34.5% on a R55.4 million budget for

particularly given the fact that both

process, a total of 74 PhD scholarships

the 2014/2015 financial year.

my appointment as CEO and the

were awarded to individuals from 17

appointment of the rest of the

countries across Africa.

executive team were only effected

Opportunities to better position
NIHSS among our stakeholders

in January 2015. This makes our

We have also achieved our set target

achievements in our first year all the

for the Catalytic Research Programme,

I would like to extend my sincere

more outstanding..

delivering 12 catalytic research

appreciation to all our stakeholders

projects, which are geared towards

that helped us to achieve our overall

Target exceeded on HSS doctoral

dynamising fields of research and

performance in 2014/2015. I extend

scholarships awarded

teaching in the HSS.

a special thanks to NSFAS, CODESRIA,
SAHUDA, DHET staff, and all Catalytic

One of the key highlights for me is that

In addition, our target of establishing

Research project leaders and

we exceeded – by 5.3% – our target

a Humanities Hub was met, with

postgraduate students, as well as the

for the number of South African PhD

Liliesleaf Museum as our pioneering,

NIHSS Board, the Chairperson Prof. Ari

scholarships to be awarded, awarding

flagship initiative.

Sitas and the NIHSS staff.

The year ahead

This report marks a significant coming

118 doctoral scholarships.
With the financial support provided
to students running over a period of

of age of a fledgling Institute. The

three years, this means that the

My team and I look forward to the

journey of strengthening South

NIHSS–SAHUDA Doctoral Schools

new year, as well as to both tackling

Africa’s humanities at the epicentre of

Programme will be supporting a total

challenges and taking on opportunities

knowledge production has begun!

of 255 South African doctoral students

on the horizon. The only wish I have

in the 2015/2016 financial year.

is that my team and I had more time
than just the last quarter to contribute

I am also pleased with what we have

to the performance outputs of the

managed to achieve with the Institute’s

2014/2015 financial year. Other than

Dr Sarah Mosoetsa

African Pathways Programme (APP).

that, we need to urgently address the

CEO

streamlining of processes that enable
the NIHSS to function effectively.
Here, I am particularly thinking of the

Annual Report 2014/2015
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STRATEGIC
GOALS AND
OBJECTIVES
FOR 2020
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STRATEGIC
OVERVIEW
In line with the NIHSS
vision of becoming the
epicentre of scholarship,
pedagogy, community
practice and social
responsibility for the
humanities and social
sciences in South Africa
and beyond her borders,
we have developed a
strategy for the NIHSS,
which sets two strategic
outcome-oriented goals
for the NIHSS to achieve in
the longer term.

The first strategic goal is to advance

not recommended an increase in

postgraduate scholarship in South

the proportion of new HSS students

African universities, and the second

from the current 40% of the overall

is to dynamise the fields of research

student population, as this is a matter

and teaching in the humanities and

that should preoccupy government,

social sciences in South Africa through

the university system and its various

a range of strategic programmes (see

stakeholders on an annual basis.

Table 1: Strategic outcome-oriented

Rather, we have placed the focus

goals of the NIHSS).

of the NIHSS strategy on striving to
improve the existing numbers of

In attempting to “correct” the

students in the key areas necessary for

performance trajectory of the

realising our vision.

humanities and the social sciences,
the NIHSS strategy focuses on the

The implementation of the proposals

university system as a whole, since

in our NIHSS strategy will involve

scholarship and its management

redefining the landscape of institutions

are deeply relational. Similarly, in

in the country, as well as the

addressing problems and dilemmas

relationship between higher education,

that are pockmarking the national

science and technology, and in turn

landscape, we are cognisant of

the relationship of these to research,

the fact that we are reflecting on

teaching, social responsiveness

processes under way across the

and heritage. It will define, too,

planet, for reasons that have to do

the parameters of a systemic

with structural changes in the global

differentiation that rewards institutions

economy, new divisions of labour

in a new way, as opposed to the

between regions, and new forms of

uniformity of the current dispensation.

knowledge production, innovation and
dissemination.

We also firmly believe that the
effective implementation of the NIHSS

Nevertheless, the strategic goals and

strategy will most certainly contribute

objectives as identified in the NIHSS

to accelerating the demands of

strategy will have transformative and

transformation for our country.

far-reaching implications. We have

Annual Report 2014/2015
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Table 1: Strategic outcome-oriented goals of the NIHSS
Strategic

Goal 1:

Goal 2:

outcome-

Advance postgraduate scholarship in

Dynamise the fields of research and teaching in the HSS

oriented goals

South African universities

in South Africa through a range of Catalytic
Research Projects (CRPs) and Humanities Hubss

Goal statement

To provide doctoral scholarships for

To build and strengthen networks and partnerships with civic

postgraduate students studying in

organisations working in areas related to the humanities and

the humanities and social sciences

social sciences, and foster international research collaborations in

i. Increased funding for humanities

i. Increased research funding

areas related to the humanities and social sciences
Outcomes

and social sciences doctoral

ii. Improved research support

students

iii. Increased research outputs

ii. Academic support for doctoral
students

iv. Increased research networks between higher education
institutions

Performance

Increased number of doctoral

Increased number of research projects and Humanities Hubs in

indicator

students in the humanities and

the humanities and social sciences

social sciences

STRATEGIC
PLANNING PROCESS
The Institute’s strategic planning
process began in 2013, as part of the
establishment phase of the NIHSS.
The then steering committee of
the Ministerial Special Project held
numerous meetings to discuss the
strategic vision of the Institute. When
the Institute was established, there
were further discussions with the
Board (09 June and 18 August 2014).
The purpose of the Board meetings
was to review the NIHSS strategy to
ensure that it is relevant. The input and
views of the Board were incorporated
into the NIHSS five-year Strategic Plan
for 2015–2020.
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STRATEGIC
OBJECTIVES
2015 – 2020
In order to achieve the two longerterm strategic outcome-oriented goals
of the NIHSS, we have established a
strategic plan that relates to the period
2015–2020, with an operational plan
for 2015/2016 as the first year in the
five-year cycle.
In our 2015–2020 Strategic Plan, we
have identified six strategic objectives
for the NIHSS to achieve by March
2020 (see Table 2):
1. Provide doctoral scholarships for
postgraduate students studying in
the humanities and social sciences
in South Africa.
2. Dynamise the fields of research and
teaching in the humanities and social
sciences in South Africa through a
range of Catalytic Research Projects
and Humanities Hubs.

3. Promote the integrity, reputation
and recognition of the humanities
and social sciences within the
higher education community, the
science and technology community,
and society.
4. Advance postgraduate
scholarship through innovative
and collaborative supervision of
doctoral students.
5. Build and strengthen networks and
partnerships with organisations
working in areas related to the
humanities and social sciences.
6. Foster international research
collaborations between South
Africa and the rest of Africa, and
countries of the Global South,
including Brazil, India and China
In our endeavour to achieve these six
strategic objectives as well as the overarching longer-term strategic goals
of the NIHSS, we have also identified
the need to establish six strategic
programmes: the Doctoral

Schools Programme; the African

The NIHSS Doctoral Schools

Global South scope of the NIHSS.

Pathways Programme (APP); the

Programme thus serves to advance

The aim is primarily to develop an

Catalytic Research Programme (CRP);

postgraduate scholarship through a

Africa-centred programme and,

the Humanities Hubs; the Working

variety of innovations, including:

further, to facilitate research and

Groups for Academic Collaboration;
and the National Mentorship

teaching, including national curriculum
•

Programme (NMP).

KEY STRATEGIC
PROGRAMMES
1. DOCTORAL SCHOOLS/
SCHOLARSHIPS

•

•

The NIHSS collaborates annually with
the South African Humanities Deans’
Association (SAHUDA) to extend 150
scholarships per annum to full-time
PhD students based at South African
universities.

•

The main objective of this programme
is to promote scholarship and
address inequities in the humanities
and social sciences. To ensure that
successful applicants are provided with
structured intellectual and mentorship
support, the NIHSS–SAHUDA
cooperation has created an ambitious
national doctoral programme for the
humanities and social sciences. The
NIHSS Strategic Plan for 2015–2020
sets a target of 900 South African
students participating in Doctoral

Providing scholarships for

innovations. The African Pathways

postgraduate students studying in

Programme facilitates African research

the humanities and social sciences;

and teaching networks through

Strengthening a student-centred

annual Mobility Grants, to provide

culture in the higher education

support to South African researchers

system and helping to create an

and postgraduate students to access

environment where the critical,

opportunities that enhance targeted

analytical and normative capacities

HSS scholarship and collaborations

of students are enhanced;

within the African continent.

Ensuring collaborative supervision
of doctoral students by two or

The NIHSS collaborates with the

more universities, which could

Council for the Development of Social

include South African universities

Science Research in Africa (CODESRIA)

collaborating with universities

to extend 37 scholarships per annum

outside the borders of South Africa;

to full-time PhD non-South African

and

students based at South African

Addressing inequities with regard

universities. This programme requires

to the demographic composition of

engagement with various governments

PhD holders.

and their education ministries, and

2. AFRICAN PATHWAYS
PROGRAMME (APP)

other African institutions of higher
education.

3. HUMANITIES HUBS

The NIHSS serves to advance PanAfrican postgraduate scholarship

This is primarily a research-based

through a variety of innovations. The

programme. It aims to catalyse and

African Pathways Scholarship is one

open up new avenues for scholarship

such innovation, which serves to:

in the humanities and social sciences
and to assist in and promote the

•

Schools by 2020.

Include collaborative supervision of

HSS more generally, linking with the

doctoral students by two or more

broader public, outside of universities.

African universities; and
•

Provide a platform for African

The NIHSS awarded funding to the

scholars to cooperate and

Liliesleaf Trust under the Humanities

collaborate to reflect on the

Hubs programme in March 2015. The

past, present and future of the

Liliesleaf Trust hub is a pilot project

continent.

and flagship for the Humanities Hubs
programme. The identified theme for

The African Pathways Programme is an

this hub is memory and history. It is

expansion of the Continental and

envisaged that by remembering and

Annual Report 2014/2015
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making sense of the past, we come to
terms with our present and are able to
imagine and construct our future.
The principal purpose and
aim behind this pilot project is
two-fold: firstly, to develop an
outreach programme aiming to
address the issue of memory, the
struggle against forgetting and, in
particular, the need to preserve
and protect the memory of South
Africa’s liberation struggle and
hence, ultimately, her history;
and secondly (following on from
this theme), highlighting why the
humanities are essential and critical
disciplines to study.
The Humanities Hub Pilot Project consists
of three components: a Colloquium,
which aims to assess and analyse 21
years of democracy and its meaning
and relevance to today; an Educational
Outreach Programme; and a Mobile
Exhibition, which will visit universities.
The exhibitions and activities that form
the hubs will provide opportunities for
conversation, reflection and engaging
with the past, but also for looking
forward, for critical reflection, and for
imagination and creative responses to
our history. The projects must tell the
story of the liberation struggle, but in
a fresh and appealing way. We want to
move away from the tired old struggle
rhetoric and get visitors to look at the
past with new eyes, to find creative ways
of interpreting our present social and
political environments. Visitors should be
inspired to discard reactive, obstructionist
ways of expressing dissatisfaction and
dissent, and find  a new way forward –
one bolstered by critical engagement and
democratic discourse.
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4. CATALYTIC RESEARCH
PROGRAMME (CRP)

The aim of the NIHSS CRP is

The main objective of the Institute’s

•

therefore to:

to conduct coherent collaborative

Catalytic Research Programme

research programmes that

(CRP) is to provide services to the

involve a network of researchers

higher education sphere within the

in humanities and social sciences

humanities and social sciences.

study areas that have been

This includes, but is not limited to,
advancing learning within its scope and
application by ensuring collaboration

approved;
•

recognition and advancement of

higher education.

collaborative research programmes

Fund projects and provide
resources to encourage the

and coordination with the work of

The CRP is based on the concept of

Invite proposals from researchers

the role and contribution of the
humanities and social sciences;
•

Encourage transformative
relevance by demonstrating

founded on an existing knowledge

significant transformation in the

base and expertise. The cornerstone

humanities and social sciences, by

of any Catalytic Research Project is that

applying the principle that any CRP

research project leaders demonstrate

research must open up new areas

collaboration with national and

of research in the humanities and

international researchers (experts) in
their area of research.

social sciences, which will have a

Projects funded under the CRP

projects and which hold serious

multiplier effect on future research
transformative implications for the

engage in research in areas that are
largely unexplored, such as pre-1652
historiography, sources of creativity,

curriculum in the HSS;
•

and resources to dynamise fields

popular education, post-conflict and

of scholarship that are under-

reconstruction, indigenous languages,

researched and are of importance

the humanities concept-formation,

to nation building and knowledge

lineages of knowledge production
in the HSS, hidden voices and socioeconomic alternatives. CRP research

production; and
•

postgraduate students (honours

at the heart of the struggles around
languages and culture.

Build capacity by offering training
and funding opportunities to

must identify the gaps that are located
contested spaces of heritage, history,

Encourage the use of networks

and masters levels).
.

5. WORKING GROUPS
FOR ACADEMIC
COLLABORATION
PROGRAMME
The Working Groups for Academic
Collaboration programme involves
collectives of researchers whose

particularities. These working groups

doctoral students. These mentors’

are also aimed at ensuring the integrity

contributions will play a significant

and excellence of the HSS in South

role in providing enhanced doctoral

African higher education institutions.

support within an increasingly strained

6. NATIONAL MENTORSHIP
PROGRAMME (NMP)

postgraduate system.
The NMP is a key component of the
Doctoral Schools Programme. The

The NMP is constituted from a

NIHSS envisages six virtual Doctoral

partnership between the NIHSS,

Schools, which are organised

SAHUDA and CODESRIA. The

along regional lines: Eastern Cape;

programme aims to provide high-

KwaZulu-Natal; Northern Corridor;

quality academic mentoring to all

Free State and UNISA; Western

NIHSS doctoral students through

Cape; and Gauteng. Each region

targeted interventions offering

has a number of universities, which

a communal-based approach to

have to collaborate to support the

doctoral support. Mentors are broadly

NIHSS doctoral candidates. Mentors

tasked with coordinating Doctoral

are allocated the task of organising

research outputs.

Schools and providing mentorship

regional capacity-building initiatives to

and development to NIHSS-funded

support candidates who are based in

The Working Groups programme

students. Mentors also play a critical

specific regions. These mentors are

role in facilitating the development

the cornerstone in terms of ensuring

of relevant research skills and

the smooth running of the NMP. The

encouraging cross-institutional and

NIHSS aims to nominate 16 mentors,

inter-disciplinary conversations among

to be based at different universities

cooperation is geared towards
specified objectives. These can be
inter-disciplinary and domain-specific
groups that focus on specific areas of
research, teaching and learning in the
humanities and social sciences field.
Working Groups projects can also
focus their activities on establishing
networks, fostering dialogue, and
accelerating the production of

is intended to give effect to the
recommendations in the Charter for
Humanities and Social Sciences on
the HSS entity that will fundamentally
change the existing higher education
landscape to make it more responsive

across South Africa, by the end of the
2015/2016 financial year.

to, and inclusive of, the HSS
and its disciplinary
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20

schools and award 1 050

NIHSS–SAHUDA doctoral

scholarships plus 187

African Pathways doctoral

scholarships by March

postgraduate students

studying in the humanities

and social sciences in

South Africa

Annual Report 2014/2015
2.4

2.3

and Humanities Hubs
Number of workshops and conferences

journal articles [ISI] and others)

Number of research outputs (peer-reviewed

4

12

5

12

predetermined -

Cannot be

30

50

187

Projects

Research

from Catalytic

based on outputs

predetermined -

Cannot be

Projects

Research

from Catalytic

2020

social sciences in South

Number of Humanities Hubs

Number of Catalytic Research Projects

74

1050

targets

2019/2020

Catalytic Research Projects

Humanities Hubs by March

in the humanities and

2.2

2.1

through the African Pathways Programme

Number of doctoral scholarships awarded

300

targets*

2016

2015/

based on outputs

Research Projects and 30

research and teaching

1.2

Number of doctoral scholarships awarded

1.1
through the Doctoral Schools Programme

(Performance in 2014/2015 used as baseline*)

No

Key performance indicator

Africa through a range of

To establish 50 Catalytic

Dynamise the fields of

2020

To create 6 doctoral

scholarships for

and 2020 targets

Provide doctoral

Strategic objective

Objective statement

Table 2: Strategic objectives, key performance indicators and targets (2015–2020)
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and social sciences in

South Africa by March

2020

of the humanities and

social sciences within

the higher education

and establish the NIHSS

National Mentorship

scholarship through

innovative and

projects by March 2020

Brazil, India and China

Global South, including

Africa, and countries of the

collaborative research

the rest of

sciences by March 2020

sciences

between South Africa and

humanities and social

humanities and social

international and

institutions related to the

in areas related to the

To establish 10

universities and other

with organisations working

research collaborations

national initiatives with

Foster international

To host or co-host 10

networks and partnerships

March 2020

Build and strengthen

doctoral students

collaborative supervision of Programme (NMP) by

To appoint professors

Advance postgraduate

and society

and technology community,

6.1

5.1

4.2

4.1

3.2

Number of Working Groups for Academic

3.1

conferences

6.1 Number of seminars, workshops and

Number of dialogues, seminars and publications

National Mentorship Programme (NMP)

Number of regional workshops linked to the

National Mentorship Programme (NMP)

Number of professors appointed to manage the

relevant bodies

Support for professional associations and

Collaboration

(Performance in 2014/2015 used as baseline*)

No

Key performance indicator

5

5

4

16

4

4

targets*

2016

2015/

* Please refer to the Preamble to this report for an explanation of the use of the actual 2014/2015 performance scores as a baseline for the 2015/2016 targets.

6.

5.

4.

recognition of humanities

community, the science

To establish 15 initiatives in

reputation and recognition

and 2020 targets

Promote the integrity,

Strategic objective

Objective statement

10

10

4

16

Cannot be
predetermined
- will be
identified
annually

15

targets

2019/2020

D
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OVERALL
PERFORMANCE
FOR 2014/2015

While Dr Mosoetsa and her executive
team managed to achieve much
during the last quarter of the financial
year under review, their efforts were
constrained both by the short time

While the NIHSS was formally
established on 05 December 2013,
its operations could only formally
start once the CEO and executive
team had been appointed. Following
the appointment of Dr Mosoetsa in
November 2014, her executive team
joined the NIHSS team in January
2015. This means that effectively this
team was only in office during the last
quarter of the period under review.
Starting, structuring and staffing the
NIHSS as well as establishing enabling
policies, processes and procedures
were, therefore, key priorities for the
NIHSS top management team during
January–March 2015. However, this
team also focused on maintaining
and managing the key performance

period and the fact that the Institute’s
funds could not be released quickly
enough before the end of March 2015
to allow them to manage and improve
on all the key performance indicators.
This performance overview relates
to the period 2014/2015. Since there
was no formal strategic plan with set
targets against strategic objectives in
place prior to the start of this reporting
period, it has been decided to use the
actual performance scores achieved
during 2014/2015 as the baseline
scores against which the targets for
the 2015/2016 year could be set.
The actual performance achieved in
2014/2015 against the NIHSS KPIs is,
therefore, indicated as a baseline.

indicator (KPI) projects that had
already been initiated under the
Ministerial Special Project, which was
established in October 2012 to set
up the Institute and to manage the
transition.
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1.

Strengthen

human

capacity

Institute

(administration)

statement

objective

Establish

Objective

Strategic

Annual Report 2014/2015
1.6

1.5

1.4

1.3

1.2

1.1

No.

0%

In the period under review,

the 2015/2016 financial year.

process will be finalised in

space and equipment. The

SCM process to secure office

0

equipment

0

the NIHSS commenced the

0

space and

Secure office

hindered the setting up of
internal controls and policies.

period under review. This

policies

Appointment of the senior

controls and

-100%

towards the end of the

6

management occurred

0

Target met

(April 2015).

2015/2016 financial year

improve internal

6

0%

the recruitment process for

During the reporting period,

Target met

Target exceeded

Set up and

holder

Appoint fund

0

-16.7%

0%

8.3%

incumbent will start in the

1

0

1

personnel

1

Explanations/Reasons why

was finalised. The new

1

%
Variance Variance target was not met

a Programme Coordinator

5

4

13

2014/15

YTD

and admin

6

4

12

2014/15

Target

Appoint managers

executive

CEO and senior

Appointed the

Board members

Appointed the

Indicator

Key performance

Actual

Table 3: Performance overview 2014/2015 - setting the baseline against strategic objectives and KPIs

SECTION D | OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE

Annual Report 2014/2015

25

3.

2.

6 doctoral

schools and

award 1 050

scholarships

by March

2020

scholarships for

postgraduate

students

studying in the

humanities and

34 Catalytic

Projects and

6 Humanities

Hubs

the fields of

research and

teaching in the

humanities and

Hubs

Humanities

Projects and

of Catalytic

through a range

in South Africa

social sciences

To establish

Dynamise

social sciences

To create

doctoral

statement

objective

Provide

Objective

Strategic

3.1

2.3

2.2

No.

Catalytic Projects

Number of

Programme

Pathways

the African

awarded through

scholarships

Number of

awarded

scholarships

of doctoral

Number

Indicator

Key performance

12

37

114

2014/15

Target

12

74

118

2014/15

YTD

Actual
Explanations/Reasons why

0

37

4

0%

100%

3.5%

Target met

Target exceeded

Target exceeded

Variance Variance target was not met

%
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4.

3.

3.4
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2015.

before the end of March

implementation of projects

management.

appointment of senior

delay was due to the late

reporting period. The

took place during the

No regional workshops

Target met

Target met

Target met

students

-100%

0%

0%

0%

enable the allocation and

Programme

innovations and

-4

0

0

0

not released in time to

Mentorship

range of

0

Explanations/Reasons why

of doctoral

a National

through a

workshops

of regional

4

4

%
Variance Variance target was not met

supervision

and establish

scholarship

Number

4

12

1

2014/15

YTD

Additionally, NSF funds were

professors

postgraduate

4.1

conferences

workshops and

12

1

2014/15

Target

collaborative

To appoint

Advance

Hubs

Humanities

Projects and

Number of

and others

of Catalytic

journal articles (ISI)

Research outputs

Number of

through a range

Hubs

humanities and

3.3

in South Africa

6 Humanities

teaching in the

Humanities Hubs

Number of

Indicator

Key performance

- peer reviewed

Projects and

research and

3.2

No.

social sciences

34 Catalytic

the fields of

To establish

statement

objective

Dynamise

Objective

Strategic

Actual
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6.

5.

international

and

collaborative

research

projects

research

collaborations

between South

Africa and the

rest of Africa,

China

Brazil, India and

South, including

of the Global

and countries

establish 10

international

sciences

conferences

workshops and

seminars,

Number of

0%

and social

sciences

0

humanities

and social

1

related to the

the humanities

1

institutions

areas related to

6.1

and other

working in

To

2015.

universities

Foster

before the end of March

with

No dialogues, seminars

Target met

implementation of projects

enable the allocation and

not released in time to

Additionally, NSF funds were

management.

late appointment of senior

The delay was due to the

during the reporting period.

and publications took place

organisations

-100%

with

publications

seminars and

-2

initiatives

0

national

2

Variance Variance target was not met

partnerships

dialogues,

Number of

2014/15

Explanations/Reasons why

networks and

5.1

2014/15

%

co-host 10

Indicator

YTD

Actual

Host or

No.

Target

Build and

statement

objective

Key performance

strengthen

Objective

Strategic
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SOME KEY
HIGHLIGHTS OF
OUR PERFORMANCE
AS NIHSS IN
2014/2015
In this section, we provide greater
detail on some of the highlights that
marked our performance during
2014/2015, particularly regarding
two of the strategic objectives of the

The financial support that the NIHSS provides to students for their doctoral studies
is for a period of three years for each student. A total of 236 doctoral students will,
therefore, be supported in the 2015/2016 financial year under the NIHSS–SAHUDA
Doctoral Programme.
Figure 3: PhD 2014/2015 and 2015/2016 student intake split by race

146

150%

120%

90%

80
66

NIHSS.
60%

49

Strategic objective 1: Provide
doctoral scholarships for postgraduate

30%

12

students studying in the humanities
and social sciences in South Africa.

6

23

18

29

11 12

20

0%

African
The first KPI under this objective

2014/15

relates to the number of doctoral

Indian

Coloured
2015/16

White

Total

scholarships awarded. During the
period under review, the NIHSS

Of the 118 students who received support from the NIHSS during 2014/2015,

provided financial support to 118

52.5% are female and 47.5% are male. Based on the selection of the 118 students

South African PhD students across 23

for NIHSS funding and doctoral support in 2015/2016, the percentage of female

higher education institutions (HEIs) in

students supported by our programme will increase to 63.6%..

the humanities and social sciences. In
terms of racial profile, 75.4% of these

Figure 4: PhD 2014/2015 and 2015/2016 student intake split by gender

students are black (African, Indian and

80

coloured).

70

During the last quarter of the
rigorous review process, the NIHSS
selected a further 118 South African
students to receive financial support
for their doctoral studies in the
2015/2016 financial year. Of these
students, 83.1% are black (African,
Indian and coloured).

62

60
Student population

2014/2015 financial year, following a

75

50

56

40
30
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20
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0
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2014/2015
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2015/2016

The second KPI under this strategic

The scholarships would, for example, be allocated to students whose research is

objective relates to the number of

focused on their country or on a comparative project along the following broad

doctoral scholarships that were

themes:

awarded through the NIHSS African
Pathways Programme (APP). As part of

•

Pre- and post-colonial states, institutions and local experiences;

this programme, the NIHSS

•

Histories and legacies of liberation struggles;

collaborates annually with CODESRIA

•

Regional integration, new development and economic alternatives;

to award scholarships to non-South

•

International political economy and the role of African humanities; and

African PhD students at South African

•

universities. The APP is an expansion

Heritage, identity and culture (including literature, performance, art and
musicology).

of the Continental and Global South
scope of the NIHSS.

The APP scholarships include but are not limited to the following disciplines: the
Visual and Performing Arts, Journalism, Languages, Communication, Linguistics,

The immediate goal is to create a

Literature, Philosophy, History, Sociology, Psychology, Economics and Education.

generation of multinational African
postgraduate students and scholars

During the period under review, the NIHSS identified 74 students from

in the humanities and social sciences,

17 countries across Africa to participate in APP scholarships in 2015.

who focus their research, teaching and
writing on the parallels, continuities,
and differences in the cultures, social

Figure 5: APP student population split by country of origin

formations, histories, knowledge
systems, creativity and current

25

24

experience of the nations of Africa.

Africa from a colonial and post-colonial
perspective.
The main objective of the APP is to
promote Pan-African scholarship in the
humanities and social sciences.
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Botswana

1
Cameroon

Ethiopia

1

3

Democratic Republic of Congo

in their experience of and interest in

1

6

4

Ghana

American ideas of Africa are rooted

1

2

4

Kenya

an African perspective – as most Euro-

1

2

Lesotho

that we re-conceptualise Africa from

0

Zimbabwe

constructive debates that will ensure

Mauritania

research, new insights and

2
Mozambique

2

Malawi

5

5

Nigeria

comparative and collaborative

Republic of Sudan

increase the possibilities for intensive

11
10

Rwanda

communication. We also hope to

Tanzania

richer cross-national scholarly

15

Uganda

new intellectual communities and

Zambia

In the process, we hope to build

Student population
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The higher education institutions in South Africa that are most preferred by the
APP student population are: UKZN (22.9%, or 17 students); UW (16.2%, or 12
students); UCT (13.5%, or 10 students); and UWC (12.2%, or 9 students). The
74 students will enrol at their respective universities during the 2015/2016
financial year.

Figure 6: APP students’ preference for South African higher education institutions

University of the Witwatersrand
16.2%
University of KwaZulu-Natal
22.9%
University of Cape Town
13.5%
University of the Western Cape
12.2%
Other institutions
35.1%

Of the 74 students selected for scholarship support on the APP, 54 (73%) are
males and 20 (27.0%) are females.

Figure 7: 2015/2016 APP PhD student population intake gender profile

Male 73%
Female 27%
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Strategic Objective 2: Dynamise the

The NIHSS supported 12 CRPs during the period under review. The race profile of

fields of research and teaching in the

the leaders of these projects is: 42% black African; and 33% white..  

humanities and social sciences in South
Africa through a range of Catalytic

Figure 8: Employment equity profile of Catalytic Research Project leaders in

Research Projects and Humanities Hubs

2014/2015

The first KPI related to this strategic
objective is the number of Catalytic
Research Projects (CRPs) that were

African 42%

awarded by the NIHSS. During the

White 33%

2013/2014 financial year, a total of
12 CRPs had been awarded under

Indian 17%

the auspices of the Ministerial Special

Coloured 8%

Project. With the advent of the NIHSS,
the 12 CRPs provided the 2014/2015
baseline for the number of projects
awarded by the NIHSS.
Projects funded under the CRP are
engaged in research in the following
areas:
•

The use of African indigenous
languages in concept-formation in

The gender profile of the CRP leaders is 67% male and 33% female. The
NIHSS aims to increase the number of women participants in the 2015/2016
financial year.
Figure 9: Gender profile of Catalytic Research Project leaders in 2014/2015

humanities and social sciences in
higher education;
•

Hidden voices – Unpublished Work,
1950-1990;

•

Post-conflict reconstruction and
reconciliation;

•

Female 33%

Socio-economic alternatives for the
mining industry think-tank;

•
•

Male 67%

Pre-1652 Historiography;
Heritage hubs – from heritage sites
to knowledge hubs;

•

Heritage hubs – migrant labour
museums and knowledge centre;

•

Traditions of popular education in
South Africa;

•

Sources of creativity – formation of
a composers’ guild;

•

Sources of creativity;

•

Hidden voices – art and music; and

•

During the period under review, the CRPs were mainly hosted at UCT (33%); UWC
(17%) and UW (17%). The NIHSS aims to increase the participation of historically
black universities in the 2015/2016 financial year.

BRICS and South–South
scholarship.
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Figure 10: The percentage of CRPs funded at participating HEIs in 2014/2015
33
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The second KPI related to this strategic objective is the number of projects that the
NIHSS awarded under the auspices of its Humanities Hubs programme. As shown
in Table 3, one project was launched as part of the Humanities Hubs programme
during the reporting period.
The Liliesleaf Trust, which submitted a proposal for funding in September 2014, is
the first project to have received funding under the patronage of the NIHSS
Humanities Hubs. As such, it is regarded as this programme’s flagship project.
Liliesleaf Trust received its first payment tranche in March 2015.
The third KPI related to this strategic objective is the number of research outputs
in the form of articles published in peer-reviewed journals (ISI) and others. During
the period under review, the leaders of the 12 NIHSS-supported CRPs reported the
publication of 12 articles in peer-reviewed journals.
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We are dependent on fostering sustainable relationships
with our key stakeholders, in order to fulfil the NIHSS
mandate effectively. Partnering and collaborating with
key role players, researchers and students in higher
education institutions, both in South Africa and Africa,
as well as potential funders, also enables the NIHSS to
contribute to government’s NDP. We do this by helping
to improve the quality of education; by promoting
leadership and partnerships throughout society; and
by helping to build the capability of the state to play a
developmental and transformative role in creating a
better future for all South Africans.

STAKEHOLDER VALUE ANALYSIS
The primary beneficiaries will be South African and African PhD students in the
HSS, as well as academics, who will serve as research leaders in the various
Catalytic Research Projects. Ultimately, the entire HSS landscape will benefit from
these interventions through multiplier effects. The awarding of scholarships and
projects will take equity considerations into account. However, the NIHSS seeks to
work closely and efficiently with the following stakeholders:
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Table 4: NIHSS deliverables per stakeholder group
Stakeholder

NIHSS deliverable(s)

APP students

•

Effective and timely administration of scholarships

CODESRIA

•

Collaboration in APP application screening through panel review

DHET

•

Comprehensive reporting at agreed intervals

•

Performance monitoring in terms of the NIHSS mandate

•

Provision of policy advice in matters related to HSS

•

Advise Minister of Higher Education and Training and government on HSSrelated matters

•

Increase and guide academic discourse about the crucial social issues that
face us as South African citizens, in order to help influence the character of
the South African community and create a more humane, responsible and
just society

Doctoral School students
Mentors

•

Effective and timely administration of scholarships

•

Support through NMP

•

Provision of high-quality academic mentoring to all NIHSS doctoral students

•

through targeted interventions that offer a communal-based approach to
doctoral support

•

Favourable working conditions

•

Support for students enrolled for study

Funders

•

Potential partnership on ad hoc projects in line with agreed-upon service

HEIs

•

Funding of research through the CRP

NSFAS

•

Compliance with procedures preceding the disbursement of funds, in line

Employees

level agreement

with the NIHSS mandate
NSF

•

Funding of humanities and social sciences PhD students

SAHUDA

•

Collaboration in Doctoral Schools Programme application screening through
panel review

Partnering NGOs

•

Potential partnership on ad hoc projects in line with agreed-upon service
level agreement

South African citizens

•

Being socially responsive

•

Helping to address the socio-economic challenges facing South Africa and
her citizens

•

Advising civil society on HSS-related matters; and increasing and guiding
public discourse about the crucial social issues that face us as citizens, in
order to help build a better South Africa for all citizens

Annual Report 2014/2015
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MANAGEMENT
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Effective people
development, recruitment
and management are
critical to our ability to
deliver effectively on the
NIHSS mandate.
In the Preamble to this Annual Report,
the historical overview provides
context to how the NIHSS came to be
established, as well as an overview of
who managed the process until then.

HUMAN
RESOURCES MISSION

The HR policy and procedures manual
has been developed and reviewed
by senior management during
the period under review, and has

Our HR mission is to enable the NIHSS
staff and service providers to perform
their duties and responsibilities in an
efficient manner.

subsequently been referred to the
Board’s HR Committee for review and
final approval by the Board.
•

A recruitment agency, Mindworx

To this end, the NIHSS aims to provide

Recruiting, was appointed to

employees with fair and equitable

recruit talented individuals with the

conditions of employment, which

required competencies to deliver

comply with legal provisions and best

on the NIHSS mandate.

employment practices. This will help
the NIHSS to realise its objectives
while ensuring uniformity and job

•

A performance management
framework and implementation

The 2014/2015 annual performance

schedule were drafted. The

plan was geared to sourcing skilled

framework is currently under

people through effective recruitment

review. It is envisaged that the

strategies, and developing and

performance management

approving an HR policies and

system will be implemented in the

procedures manual.

were identified in the 2014/2015
annual performance plan:
1. To enable the NIHSS to become
an established institute through

Performance Management
System

satisfaction as well as staff retention.

To achieve this, the following goals

Recruitment

2015/2016 financial year.
•

Staff complement
The staff complement for
2014/2015 was 14 staff members
(out of a planned full complement
of 22).

the appointment of a CEO, CFO
and Academic and Administration
Directors;
2. To source skilled people in the
various directorates;
3. To develop an enabling work
environment;
4. To shape a high-performance
culture; and
5. To ensure compliance with relevant
employment-related legislation.
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HUMAN RESOURCES OVERSIGHT STATISTICS
Table 5: Personnel cost 2014/2015
Personnel
expenditure
Programme/ activity/
objective
Senior management
Activity driven personnel

Avg.

Total

Personnel

as a % of total

No. of

cost per

expenditure

expenditure

expenditure

employees

employee

12 139 323

2 114 389

9.4%

6

352 398

5 526 018

943 983

4.2%

7

134 855

4 820 649

834 591

3.7%

4

208 648

22 485 990

3 892 963

17.3%

17

695 901

expenses
Administrative Personnel
expenses
Total

Note: Personnel expenditure includes expenditure in relation to permanent, contract and interim employees.

Figure 11: 2014/2015 personnel expenditure as a percentage of total NIHSS expenditure

Senior Management 9.4%
Activity Driven Personnel Expenses 4.2%
Administrative Personnel Expenses 3,7%

Table 6: 2014/2015 personnel cost per salary band
Personnel
Personnel

expenditure as

expenditure

% of total

No. of

per employee

Level

(R)

personnel cost

employees

(R)

Senior Management

2 114 389

54.3%

6

352 398

Skilled

1 711 765

44%

9

190 196

62 118

1.6%

1

62 118

4 691

0.1%

1

4 691

3 892 963

100%

17

609 404

Semi-skilled
Unskilled
Total

Note: Personnel expenditure includes expenditure in relation to permanent, contract and interim employees.
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Average cost

Figure 12: 2014/2015 personnel cost per salary band

Senior Management 54.3%
Skilled 44.0%
Semi-skilled 1.6%
Unskilled 0,1%

Table 7: 2014/2015 staff training expenditure
Training
expenditure
Programme/

Personnel

Training

as a % of

No. of

Avg. training

activity/

expenditure

expenditure

personnel

employees

cost per

objective

(R)

(R)

cost

trained

employee

3 892 963

37 600

1%

3

12 533

Staff training

Two staff members received educational assistance – for a Masters in Industrial Sociology at the University of Pretoria, and a
PhD in Business Management at North West University, respectively.
One staff member enrolled for a New Managers Programme at the University of the Witwatersrand during the period under
review.
Table 8: Employment and vacancies as at 31 March 2015
2014/2015

2014/2015 No.

approved posts

of

2014/2015

% of

(NIHSS)

employees

vacancies

vacancies

Senior management

4

4

-

0.0%

Skilled

13

6

7

53.8%

Semi-skilled

4

1

3

75.0%

Unskilled

1

1

-

0.0%

Total

22

12

10

45.4%

Level

Annual Report 2014/2015

39

SECTION F | PEOPLE MANAGEMENT
Table 9: Employment changes during 2014/2015
Employment at
Level

Appointments

31/03/2014

Employment at
Terminations

31/03/2015

Senior management

2*

4

2*

4

Skilled

7

3

4

6

Semi-skilled

-

Unskilled
Total

9**

1

-

1

1

-

1

9

6

12

Notes:
*

These two positions included the Director and Deputy Director positions of the Ministerial Special Project that had been dissolved with the
appointment of the NIHSS CEO and three executives

** The two positions referred to above are included in this total

LABOUR RELATIONS: MISCONDUCT AND DISCIPLINARY ACTION
The labour relations environment for the period under review was stable.

EQUITY TARGET AND EMPLOYMENT EQUITY STATUS
For the period under review, the NIHSS employment profile in terms of race was 75.0% African, 8.3% coloured, 16.7% Indian
and 0.0% white – against targets of 74.9%, 10.8%, 3% and 11.3% for the respective groups.
For the period under review, the gender profile in NIHSS was 91.6% female and 8.3% male – against targets of 45.2% and
54.8%, respectively.
For the period under review, the profile at management level was 75% African and 25% coloured, and 75% female and 25%
male. The NIHSS aims to increase the overall appointment of males in future.
Figure 13: 2014/2015 overall race profile achieved vs targets of NIHSS staff
80%

74,9% 75%

70%
60%
50%
40%
30%
20%

10,8% 8,30%

10%

16,70%
3%

0%

African
Target

40

Coloured

Indian

Actual
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11,3%
0%
White

Figure 14: 2014/2015 overall gender
profile of NIHSS staff achieved vs
targets			

INFORMATION AND COMMUNICATION TECHNOLOGY
The enhancement of operational efficiency is core to meeting the NIHSS strategic
objectives. Recognising and adopting new technology is vital if we are both to carry

100%

out basic tasks and to ensure that the products and services on offer are of the

91,6%

highest quality. During the period under review, the necessary first steps were taken
to establish and enable the information and communication technology function in

80%

the NIHSS
54,8%

60%

45,2%

MARKETING AND BRANDING

40%

The main objective of this portfolio is to build the NIHSS brand through profiling
20%

0%

8,3%
Female
Target

Male
Actual

and marketing the Institute, by communicating and promoting the Institute’s
value proposition and mandate to its stakeholders, as well as managing its
communication with the media. During the period under review, the necessary
first steps were taken to establish and enable the marketing, branding and
communication functions in the NIHSS.

Annual Report 2014/2015

41

G

SECTION G | OUR LEADERSHIP AND GOVERNANCE

OUR LEADERSHIP
AND
GOVERNANCE

42

Annual Report 2014/2015

MEET THE MEMBERS OF THE NIHSS BOARD
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OUR EX OFFICIO BOARD MEMBERS:

Mr Kibiti Lephoto
NIHSS CFO
January – December 2015.

Dr Sarah Mosoetsa
NIHSS CEO

Prof. Nhlanhla Mkhize

Mr John Pampallis

MEET THE MEMBERS OF THE NIHSS EXECUTIVE TEAM
“I want to extend my sincere appreciation to everyone who helped us to achieve our
overall performance in 2014/2015, to set up the National Institute for the Humanities
and Social Sciences. A special thank you to NSFAS, CODESRIA, NSF, SAHUDA, all Catalytic
Research project leaders, our postgraduate students and, most of all, the NIHSS Board
and staff.” – Dr Sarah Mosoetsa, CEO

Mr Kibiti Lephoto
CFO
January – December 2015.

Dr Sarah Mosoetsa
NIHSS CEO

44

Dr Nthabiseng Motsemme
Academic Director
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Ms Yolanda Davids
Administration Director

REPORT OF THE
ACCOUNTING
AUTHORITY
The leadership of the NIHSS, its
Board, CEO and management team,

Figure 15: NIHSS’ Accountability Structure
PARLIAMENTARY PORTFOLIO COMMITTEE

EXECUTIVE AUTHORITY
Minister of Higher Education and Training

are responsible for ensuring that

ACCOUNTING AUTHORITY

the NIHSS applies and complies

Board of the NIHSS

with all relevant governance and
risk management principles. (See

ACCOUNTING OFFICER

Figure 15, which depicts the NIHSS

Chief Executive of the NIHSS

accountability structure.)

GOVERNANCE
Corporate governance embodies
the processes and systems by which
the NIHSS is controlled and held to
account.
In addition to complying with legislative
requirements based on the NIHSSspecific legislation, the NIHSS applies
the precepts of the Public Finance
Management Amendment Act (PFMA)
(No. 29 of 1999), South African
Companies Act (No. 71 of 2008)
and the King Report on Corporate
Governance in South Africa and the
King Code of Corporate Governance
(King III).

NIHSS MANAGEMENT

NIHSS BOARD AS ACCOUNTING AUTHORITY
The NIHSS Board is appointed by the Minister of Higher Education and Training,
and is empowered as the accounting authority, through the Regulations for the
Establishment of a National Institute for the Humanities and Social Sciences, 2013
(Government Notice No. 952 of 2013) in accordance with the provisions of the
Higher Education Act, 1997 (No. 101 of 1997) and the PFMA (No. 29 of 1999).
The Board is required to exercise leadership, creativity, integrity and good
judgement by providing strategic leadership and by exercising oversight over all
Institutional matters and the compliance environment that impacts on the Institute
– including, but not limited to, the King Report on Corporate Governance in South
Africa and the King Code of Corporate Governance (King III). The NIHSS Board
members were appointed on 27 March 2014, under the leadership of Prof. Ari
Sitas as Chairperson.

ACCOUNTING OFFICER
The Chief Executive Officer (CEO) of the NIHSS, Dr Sarah Mosoetsa, is its
Accounting Officer. She has absolute responsibility and accountability for the
performance of the NIHSS. As the CEO, she provides strategic direction to the
NIHSS, and in her role as Accounting Officer she monitors operational performance
and management; determines policy processes to ensure the integrity of the NIHSS
risk management and internal controls; and ensures compliance with applicable
laws, regulations and government policy.
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The role and responsibilities of the

No. 37118. The committees are

For the period under review, no

CEO are set out and managed in terms

chaired by persons with the requisite

members had yet been appointed to

of an employment contract and

knowledge, skills and experience.

the Audit and Risk Committee.

performance agreements, entered
into with the Board and the Minister
of Higher Education and Training
from time to time. Dr Mosoetsa was
appointed in November 2014.

GOVERNANCE
COMMITTEES
A number of governance committees
are in place to assist and advise the
CEO in her duties. The NIHSS
governance committees include the
following:
•

Executive Committee;

•

Audit and Risk Committee;

•

Finance and Procurement
Committee;

•

Human Resources Committee;

•

Academic Committee; and

•

International Advisory Committee

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE
The Executive Committee deals with
governance matters and all other
matters as they relate to the NIHSS.
This is the highest decision-making
committee of the NIHSS, and is chaired
by Prof. Ari Sitas, the Chairperson of
the Board.
Because the CEO is also a full-time
member of staff and, therefore,
affected by the NIHSS policies and
procedures, any matters pertaining
to these are first presented to the
Executive Committee for comment.
Following input from this committee,
these matters are then presented to
the relevant governance committee
to consider and on which to make
formal recommendations to the
CEO. The Chairperson of the relevant

The appointment of the NIHSS
governance committees and all the
Chairpersons of the governance
committees were approved and
confirmed on 10 June 2014. There
was only one exception, namely that
the Chairperson for the Finance
and Procurement Committee would
only be confirmed in the 2015/2016

governance committee provides full
reasons for the adoption or nonadoption of any matter that has been
considered by that committee.
Audit and Risk Committee
This committee’s role is to assist the
NIHSS Board with discharging its
duties relating to the safeguarding

financial year.

of assets, the operation of adequate

All governance committees of the

of integrated reporting, and the

systems and controls, the overseeing

NIHSS function under a mandate of
strategic or financial importance to the
Institute as governed by the Statute of
the NIHSS, published on 5 December
2013 in Government Gazette

reviewing of financial information,
in compliance with all applicable
legal requirements and accounting
standards, as prescribed by the PFMA.

Finance and Procurement Committee
The mandate of the Finance and
Procurement Committee, which is
guided by the PFMA, is to advise
the NIHSS Board on financial and
investment matters and on longterm infrastructure development at
the NIHSS. In fulfilling this role, this
committee is tasked with reinforcing
the NIHSS governance function
with regard to sound, responsible
and effective financial planning,
financial administration and financial
governance, and proper financial
reporting. This committee considers
and evaluates all tenders, including
research contracts, of the NIHSS.
For the period under review, this
committee comprised Board members
Prof. Fiona Tregenna, Mr Ivor Baatjes
and Prof. Ari Sitas, with CFO Mr Kibiti
Lephoto as an ex officio member.
The Chairperson’s position for this
committee, which needs to be filled by
an independent non-executive member,
was still vacant at the end of the period
under review. For this reason, no
meetings had taken place before the
2014/2015 financial year end.
Human Resources Committee
The role of this committee is to ensure
that adequate human resources
policies and strategies are in place,
and to monitor the implementation
of these policies and strategies
in accordance with set criteria
and measures. This committee is
responsible for all human resources
and employment
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equity-related matters, including remuneration and service conditions. This

International Advisory Committee

committee mainly attends to the employment contracts, remuneration and

The mandate of this committee is

performance evaluation of the CEO and other members of the executive team.

to advise the NIHSS Board on all
international work of the Institute,

Prof. Rosemary Moeketsi was appointed as the Chairperson of this committee on

including international collaborations

10 June 2014. The members included Ms Luli Callinicos, Mr Alex Mashilo, Dr Vukile

and partnerships. The main function

Khumalo and Prof. Ari Sitas, as well as Mr John Pampallis in an ex officio capacity.

of this committee is to establish and

This committee held two meetings during the period under review (attendance at

support an international committee

these meetings is indicated in Table 10).

of co-opted members solicited from
other similar institutions (in other

Remuneration of the Human Resources Committee during 2014/15

parts of the world, including – but not

The remuneration of the Human Resources (HR) Committee of the NIHSS Board

limited to – Brazil, India, East and West

is determined in line with the National Treasury guidelines. Below is a summary of

Africa and SADC member countries).

the remuneration of the HR Committee for the period under review.
The Chairperson of this committee is
Table 10: Attendance at Human Resources Committee meetings (2014/2015)

Prof. Sam Moyo, who was appointed
on 10 June 2014. The committee
members included Prof. Ahmed

Meetings
12 September

02 October

05 November

2014

2014

2014

Prof. Rosemary Moeketsi

Yes

Yes

Yes

Ms Luli Callinicos

Yes

Yes

Yes

Mr Alex Mashilo

Yes

Yes

No

Dr Vukile Khumalo

Yes

Yes

Yes

Prof. Ari Sitas

Yes

Yes

Yes

Mr John Pampallis

No

Yes

No

Board members

Dr Sarah Mosoetsa

Not yet appointed Not yet appointed

Yes

Academic Committee
The primary function of the Academic Committee is to advise the NIHSS Board on
matters related to the intellectual trajectories of the Doctoral Schools, Catalytic
Research Projects, and Humanities Hubs, and of the African Pathways Programme.
This committee reviews the thematic and policy guidelines for all calls for proposals

Bawa, Prof. Fiona Tregenna, Ms Luli
Callinicos and Prof. Ari Sitas, as well as
CEO Dr Sarah Mosoetsa and Mr John
Pampallis as ex officio members.
No meetings of this committee were
held in the period under review.

MEETINGS OF THE BOARD
AND ITS COMMITTEES
The NIHSS Board met three times
during the 2014/2015 financial year.
The dates of meetings and attendance
by members is indicated in Table 11.

and Doctoral Schools applications.
Dr Pamela Maseko was confirmed as the Chairperson of this committee on
10 June 2014. The members of this committee included Prof. Ahmed Bawa, Mr Ivor
Baatjes, Prof. Sam Moyo, Mr Alex Mashilo and Prof. Ari Sitas, as well as two ex
officio members, Dr Nthabiseng Motsemme and Prof. Velile Notshulwana (for the
period March 2014–June 2014) and then Prof. Nhlanhla Mkhize (from June until the
end of the financial year under review). No meetings of this committee were held in
the period under review.
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Table 11: Attendance at meetings of the NIHSS Board (2014/2015)
Meetings
31 March

09 June

18 August

27 February

2014*

2014

2014

2015

Prof. Ari Sitas

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Ms Luli Callinicos

Yes

Yes

Yes

No

Prof. Rosemary Moeketsi

Yes

Yes

Yes

No

Prof. Ahmed Bawa

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Prof. Sam Moyo

Yes

Yes

No

Yes

Prof. Fiona Tregenna

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Dr Bernard Nthambeleni

Yes

Yes

No

Yes

Dr Vukile Khumalo

No

Yes

Yes

Yes

Mr Ivor Baatjes

No

No

Yes

No

Mr Alex Mashilo

Yes

Yes

No

No

Dr Pamela Maseko

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Mr John Pampallis (DHET)

Yes

Yes

No

Yes

Prof. Velile Notshulwana (SAHUDA)

Yes

No

No

No

No

No

Yes

Yes

Dr Sarah Mosoetsa

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Mr Kibiti Lephoto

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Board members
Chairperson

Ex officio

(March to June 2014)
Prof. Nhlanhla Mkhize (SAHUDA)
(June 2014 to March 2015)

* This meeting fell within the 2013/2014 Financial year

REMUNERATION OF THE BOARD
The remuneration of the NIHSS Board members is determined in line with guidelines of the National Treasury. Table 12
summarises Board member remuneration for the period under review.
Table 12: Remuneration of NIHSS Board members (2014/2015)
Subsistence and
Name

Remuneration

Other allowances

travel

Total

Prof. Ari Sitas

R20 000

-

-

R20 000

Ms Luli Callinicos

R12 500

-

-

R12 500

Prof. Rosemary Moeketsi

R14 500

-

-

R14 500

Prof. Ahmed Bawa

R10 000

-

-

R10 000

Prof. Sam Moyo

R5 000

-

-

R5 000

Prof. Fiona Tregenna

R5 000

-

-

R5 000

Dr Bernard Nthambeleni

R7 500

-

-

R7 500

Dr Vukile Khumalo

R12 665

-

-

R12 665
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Subsistence and
Name

Remuneration

Other allowances

travel

Total

Mr Ivor Baatjes

-

-

-

-

Mr Alex Mashilo

R5 000

-

-

R5 000

Dr Pamela Maseko

R10 000

-

-

R10 000

RISK MANAGEMENT AND RISK ASSESSMENT
The NIHSS adopts a robust approach to risk management. Risks, and the mitigation thereof, are continually discussed, during
Executive Committee and other governance committee meetings as well as during regular staﬀ engagements. The identified
risks of the NIHSS are assessed on an ongoing basis. A risk register has been established and is reported on at different
relevant levels within the NIHSS. The Executive Committee has also reviewed existing controls to ensure that these are still in
place and effective.
During the reporting period, the NIHSS identified and assessed the key risks facing the organisation, and agreed on a range of
mitigation strategies (see Table 13).
Table 13: NIHSS risk assessment for 2014/2015
Risk Assessment

Risk

Sources

assessment

Mitigation

Funding

Low

The NIHSS funding will be derived from the fiscus, through the DHET’s
budgetary allocation. In this sense, the Institute is not reliant on external grants.
This will ensure that the priority NIHSS interventions are adequately supported.

Stakeholder buy-in

Low

The NIHSS, as well as its six strategic programmes in particular, enjoy the
support of all stakeholders, represented most directly by SAHUDA.

Student commitment

Low/ medium

It is difficult to assess this risk, but given the high level of support that the
NIHSS–SAHUDA doctoral programme has received from academics and
students, the prediction is that this risk will remain relatively low.

Internal Control
The CEO, executives and senior managers in the NIHSS are responsible for ensuring that internal controls are implemented,
maintained and monitored within their respective portfolios.
Internal Audit
The internal audit derives its mandate from the Audit and Risk Committee’s terms of reference. The Audit and Risk Committee
is pivotal in ensuring that the internal audit function is independent and has the necessary standing and authority to deliver on
its functions. With the appointment of the independent non-executive members of the Audit and Risk Committee in the new
financial year (2015/2016), the NIHSS will appoint an internal auditor to manage this function.
Compliance with Laws and Regulations
The NIHSS is very aware of its regulatory environment and aims to incorporate all applicable laws, regulations and policies into
its own compliance monitoring system. Policy compliance is monitored manually. During the period under review, the NIHSS
complied with all laws and policies impacting on its business.
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Our organisation is bound by the following legislation and regulations:
•

Basic Conditions of Employment Act, 1997;

•

Employment Equity Act, 1998;

•

Education Law Amendment Acts, 2007. 2011;

•

Higher Education Act, 1997;

•

Labour Relations Act, 1995;

•

National Qualifications Framework Act, 2008;

•

National Treasury Regulations;

•

Occupational Health and Safety Act;

•

Preferential Procurement Policy Framework Act (PPPFA), 2000

•

Public Finance Management Act, 1999;

•

PPPFA Regulations; and

•

Skills Development Act, 1998.

Supply Chain Management (SCM)
In accordance with the statutory regulations stipulated under Regulation 16
A of the PFMA (No. 1 of 1999 as amended by No. 29 of 1999) on supply chain
management (SCM), the NIHSS started developing a Supply Chain Management
policy in the period under review. It aims to implement an effective and efficient
SCM system and processes for the acquisition of goods and services that adhere
to international best practices, legislation, and internal control in the areas of
acquisition management, demand management, logistics management, SCM risk
management, and assessment of SCM performance.

REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
The role of the Audit Committee is to assist the Board with discharging its duties
relating to the safeguarding of assets, the operation of adequate systems and
controls, overseeing integrated reporting, reviewing of financial information and
in compliance with all applicable legal requirements and accounting standards as
prescribed in the PFMA.
For the period under review no members were appointed to the Audit and Risk
Committee. For this reason, a detailed Audit and Risk Committee report has not
been included in this Annual Report.
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The financial statements set out on pages 57 to 79, which have been prepared on the going concern basis, were
approved by the Board on 19 July 2016 and were signed on its behalf by:

Dr Sarah Mosoetsa
Chief Executive Officer (CEO)
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Prof. Aristides Sitas
Board - Chairperson

REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL
INTRODUCTION

AUDITOR-GENERAL’S
RESPONSIBILITY

accounting policies used and the

3. My responsibility is to express

as well as evaluating the overall

1. I have audited the financial
statements of the National
Institute for the Humanities

an opinion on these financial

and Social Sciences (NIHSS)

statements based on my

set out on pages 57–79, which

audit. I conducted my audit in

comprise the statement of

accordance with International

financial position as at 31 March

Standards on Auditing. Those

2015, the statement of financial

standards require that I comply

performance, statement of

with ethical requirements, and

changes in net assets, cash flow

plan and perform the audit to

statement and statement of

obtain reasonable assurance

comparison of budget information

about whether the financial

with actual information for the

statements are free from material

year then ended, as well as the

misstatement.

notes, comprising a summary of
significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

ACCOUNTING AUTHORITY’S
RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. An audit involves performing
procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures
selected depend on the
auditor’s judgement, including

reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by management,
presentation of the financial
statements.
5. I believe that the audit evidence
I have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for
my audit opinion.

OPINION
6. In my opinion, the financial
statements present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial
position of the NIHSS as at 31
March 2015 and its financial
performance and cash flows
for the year then ended, in
accordance with SA Standards of
GRAP and the requirements of the
Higher Education Act (No. 101 of

2. The board of directors, which

the assessment of the risks of

constitutes the accounting

material misstatement of the

authority, is responsible for the

financial statements, whether

preparation and fair presentation

due to fraud or error. In making

of these financial statements in

those risk assessments, the

accordance with South African

auditor considers internal

Standards of Generally Recognised

control relevant to the entity’s

below. My opinion is not modified

Accounting Practice (SA Standards

preparation and fair presentation

in respect of these matters:

1997).

EMPHASIS OF MATTERS
7. I draw attention to the matters

of GRAP) and the requirements

of the financial statements in

of the Higher Education Act (No.

order to design audit procedures

101 of 1997), and for such internal

that are appropriate in the

control as the accounting authority

circumstances, but not for

determines is necessary to enable

the purpose of expressing an

financial statements, the

the preparation of financial

opinion on the effectiveness of

accounting period for the annual

statements that are free from

the entity’s internal control. An

financial statements is extended

material misstatement, whether

audit also includes evaluating the

over 16 months.

due to fraud or error.

appropriateness of

ACCOUNTING PERIOD
8. As disclosed in note 2 to the
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REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL (CONTINUES)
SUBMISSION OF ANNUAL
REPORT

PREDETERMINED
OBJECTIVES

consistent with the planned

9. The NIHSS received extension

11. I performed procedures to obtain

tests to determine whether

from the Department of Higher

evidence about the usefulness

Education and Training to submit

and reliability of the reported

its annual financial statements not

performance information for

within the legislated timeframe

the following selected objectives

prescribed by the Higher

presented in the Annual Report

Education Act (No. 101 of 1997).

of the public entity for the year

REPORT ON OTHER
LEGAL AND REGULATORY
REQUIREMENTS
10. In accordance with the Public

ended 31 March 2015:
a. Objective 1: Establish institute,
on page 24.
b. Objective 2: Provide doctoral

Audit Act of South Africa,

scholarships for postgraduate

2004 (No. 25 of 2004) and the

students studying in the

general notice issued in terms

humanities and social sciences,

thereof, I have a responsibility to

on page 25.

report findings on the reported
performance information against

c. Objective 3: Dynamise the

predetermined objectives of

fields of research and teaching

selected programmes presented

in the humanities and social

in the Annual Report, non-

sciences in South Africa

compliance with legislation and

through a range of Catalytic

internal control. The objective of

Projects and Humanities Hubs,

my tests was to identify reportable

on page 26

findings as described under each
subheading but not to gather

12. I evaluated the reported

evidence to express assurance

performance information against

on these matters. Accordingly,

the overall criteria of usefulness

I do not express an opinion or

and reliability.

conclusion on these matters.
13. I evaluated the usefulness of the
reported performance information
to determine whether it was
presented in accordance with
the National Treasury’s annual
reporting principles and whether
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the reported performance was
programmes. I further performed
indicators and targets were
well defined, verifiable, specific,
measurable, time bound and
relevant, as required by the
National Treasury’s Framework
for Managing Programme
Performance Information (FMPPI).
14. I assessed the reliability of the
reported performance information
to determine whether it was valid,
accurate and complete.
15. The material findings in respect of
the selected programmes are as
follows:
Objective 2: Provide doctoral
scholarships for postgraduate
students studying in the
humanities and social sciences.
Usefulness of reported
performance information.
Performance indicators not well
defined.
16. The FMPPI requires that
performance indicators be
well defined by having clear
definitions so that data can be
collected consistently and is easy
to understand and use. A total
of 100% indicators were not well
defined.

17. This was due to a lack of review
of performance information to
ensure compliance with applicable
laws, regulations and guidance;
and also due to technical indicator

ADDITIONAL MATTERS

Social Sciences as required by

20. I draw attention to the following

the Establishment of the National

matter:

for each performance indicator.

ACHIEVEMENT OF
PLANNED TARGETS

Objective 3: Dynamise

21. Refer to the Annual Report on

descriptions not being developed

the fields of research and
teaching in the humanities
and social sciences in South
Africa through a range
of Catalytic Projects and
Humanities Hubs.
Usefulness of reported
performance information.
Performance indicators not well
defined.
18. The FMPPI requires that
performance indicators be
well defined by having clear
definitions so that data can be
collected consistently and is easy
to understand and use. A total
of 100% indicators were not well
defined.
19. This was due to a lack of review
of performance information to
ensure compliance with applicable
laws, regulations and guidance;
and also due to technical indicator
descriptions not being developed
for each performance indicator.

pages 20 and 21 and 24–27 for
information on the achievement of
planned targets for the year. That
information should be considered
in the context of material findings
on the usefulness of the reported
performance information in
paragraphs 15–21of this report.

chapter 5 of the Regulations for
Institute for the Humanities and
Social Sciences.

ANNUAL FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
24. The Board of the Institute did not
keep accounting records that fairly
present the financial results and
financial position at year end as
required by section 38I(c) of the
Higher Education Act (No. 101 of
1997). Material misstatements
were identified by the auditors
relating to trade and other

COMPLIANCE WITH
LEGISLATION

receivables from non-exchange

22. I performed procedures to obtain

annual financial statements

evidence that the public entity has
complied with applicable laws and
regulations regarding financial
matters, financial management
and other related matters.
My findings on material noncompliance with specific matters
in key legislation, as set out in the
general notice issued in terms of

transactions, government funding
and lease commitments in the
submitted. These misstatements
were subsequently corrected
to ensure that the financial
statements fairly present the
affairs of the Institute.

ANNUAL PERFORMANCE
AGAINST PREDETERMINED
OBJECTIVES

the PAA, are as follows:
25. The Board of the Institute did not

GOVERNANCE
COMMITTEES

keep accounting records that fairly

23. The Board of the Institute did

end as required by section 38I(d)

not take effective steps to ensure
that governance committees
are established for the National
Institute for the Humanities and

present the performance against
predetermined objectives at year
of the Higher Education Act (No.
101 of 1997). This is due to the
fact that objectives and indicators
audited were not well defined in
the Annual Report.
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REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL (CONTINUES)
INTERNAL CONTROL
26. I considered internal control
relevant to my audit of the
financial statements,  Annual
Report and compliance with
legislation. The matters reported
below are limited to the significant
internal control deficiencies that
resulted in the findings on the
Annual Report and the findings on
non-compliance with legislation
included in this report.

28. The Board of the Institute did
not establish and communicate
policies and procedures to enable
and support the understanding
and execution of internal control
objectives, processes and
responsibilities by all staff and to
ensure that accurate records are
kept to support amounts included
in the financial statement and
ensure compliance with the GRAP
financial reporting framework.
The Board has, however,
approved policies and procedures

LEADERSHIP

subsequent to year end and these

27. Management and the Board of the

audit cycle.

Institute did not exercise adequate
oversight responsibility in the
areas of financial and annual
reporting. The National Institute

will be reviewed during the next

FINANCIAL AND
PERFORMANCE
MANAGEMENT
29. The Institute did not have a proper

improve on oversight regarding

system of record management to

compliance with the applicable

ensure that information is easily

laws and regulation, financial

retrievable and available on a

and annual reporting. It should

timely basis for audit purposes to

also be noted that this is the

support financial reporting. This

Institute’s first year of operation,

can also be attributed to the fact

and its management has made

that this is the Institute’s first year

a commitment to the effect that

of existence. Management has

the internal control environment

subsequently agreed to implement

will mature and improve as the

internal controls to address the

Institute continues to exist.

control deficiencies identified.
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30. The Board of the Institute has
not established and implemented
a risk management system and
has also not established an audit
committee or developed written
terms of reference to facilitate
understanding of the functions,
roles and responsibilities of the
audit committee. In addition, an
internal audit function has not
been established. However, it has
been confirmed with management
that these matters will be reviewed
by the Board in the next financial
year, since this is their first year of
operation as an institute.

Auditor-General

for the Humanities and Social
Sciences leadership is required to

GOVERNANCE

Pretoria
30 June 2016

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 31 MARCH 2015
Notes
Assets
Non-Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets

4
5

Current Assets
Inventories
Receivables from exchange transactions
Receivables from non-exchange transactions
Cash and cash equivalents

6
6
7

Total Assets
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Operating lease liability
Trade and other payables from exchange transactions
Trade and other payables from non-exchange transactions
Total Liabilities
Net Assets

8
8

Reserves
Net Assets

2015 *

217 117
59 954
277 071
4 262
10 129
55 121 917
3 174 929
58 311 237
58 588 308

129 960
1 015 764
41 013 191
42 158 915
16 429 393

16 429 393
16 429 393

*The NIHSS was established on 05 December 2013.
The financial period is a 16-month period from 05 December 2013–31 March 2015.
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Notes
Revenue
Revenue from exchange transactions
Investment revenue
Total revenue from exchange transactions
Revenue from non-exchange transactions
Transfer revenue
Government Funding
Total revenue from non-exchange transactions
Total revenue
Expenditure
Employee related costs
Board member emoluments
Depreciation and amortisation
Repairs and maintenance
Project expenses
General expenses
Total expenditure
Gain (loss) on disposal of assets and liabilities
Surplus (Deficit) for the year
* The NIHSS was established on 05 December 2013.
The financial period is a 16-month period from 05 December 2013–31 March 2015.
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2015 *

93 024
93 024

9

10
4,5
11
12

38 822 359
38 822 359
38 915 383

3 892 963
107 165
40 027
2 609
14 800 509
3 642 717
22 485 990
16 429 393

CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Notes

2015 *

Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts
Government funding
Interest income

13

Payments
Project expenses
Compensation of employees and Board members
Payments to suppliers
Net cash flows from operating activities

14

24 699 242
93 024
24 792 266

(14 800 509)
(4 000 128)
(2 499 602)
(21 300 239)
3 492 027

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of other intangible assets
Net cash flows from investing activities

4
4
5

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

7

(249 133)
(67 965)
(317 098)

3 174 929
3 174 929

* The NIHSS was established on 05 December 2013.
The financial period is a 16-month period from 05 December 2013–31 March 2015

Annual Report 2014/2015

59

SECTION H | OUR FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE FOR 2014/2015

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
Reserves
Balance at 05 December 2013

-

Net surplus for the year ended 31 March 2015 *

16 429 393

Balance at 31 March 2015

16 429 393

*The NIHSS was established on 05 December 2013
The financial period is a 16-month period from 05 December 2013–31 March 2015.
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STATEMENT OF COMPARISON OF BUDGET AND ACTUAL AMOUNTS
Approved

Variance

budget

Actual * Over / (Under)

Notes

Statement of Financial Performance
Revenue
Revenue from exchange transactions
Investment revenue
Total revenue from exchange transactions

-

93 024
93 024

93 024
93 024

19

Revenue from non-exchange transactions
Transfer revenue
Government Funding
Total revenue from non-exchange transactions
Total revenue

75 797 179
75 797 179
75 797 179

38 822 359
38 822 359
38 915 383

(36 974 820)
(36 974 820)
(36 881 796)

19

Expenditure
Employee related costs
Board member emoluments
Depreciation and amortisation
Repairs and maintenance
Project expenses
General expenses
Total expenditure
Operating deficit
Gain on disposal of assets and liabilities
Surplus for the year

15 582 179
605 000
200 000
53 740 000
5 670 000
75 797 179
-

3 892 963
107 165
40 027
2 609
14 800 509
3 642 717
22 485 990
16 429 393
16 429 393

(11 689 216)
(497 835)
40 027
(197 391)
(38 939 491)
(2 027 283)
(53 311 189)
16 429 393
16 429 393

19
19
19
19
19
19

19

* The NIHSS was established on 05 December 2013.
The financial period is a 16-month period from 05 December 2013–31 March 2015.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES
1.

PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice
(GRAP), issued by the Accounting Standards Board in accordance with Section 91(1) of the Public Finance Management Act
(No. 1 of 1999).
These financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis of accounting and are in accordance with historical cost
convention as the basis of measurement, unless otherwise specified.
A summary of the significant accounting policies, which have been consistently applied in the preparation of these financial
statements, is disclosed below.

1.1 PRESENTATION CURRENCY
These financial statements are presented in South African Rand, which is the functional currency of the entity.

1.2 GOING CONCERN ASSUMPTION
These financial statements have been prepared based on the expectation that the entity will continue to operate as a going
concern for at least the next twelve (12) months.

1.3 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Items of property, plant and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
Items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated on the straight-line basis over their expected useful lives to their
estimated residual value.
The useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment have been assessed as follows:
Item
Office equipment
Computer equipment

Average useful life

Depreciation rate

5 years
3 years

20%
33%

The residual value, the useful life and the depreciation method of each asset are reviewed at least at each reporting date. If
the expectations differ from previous estimates, the change is accounted for as a change in accounting estimate.
Reviewing the useful life of an asset on an annual basis does not require the entity to amend the previous estimate unless
expectations differ from the previous estimate.
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The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is included in surplus or deficit
when the item is derecognised. The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment
is determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the item.
Where the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is greater than its estimated recoverable service
amount, it is written down immediately to its recoverable amount (i.e. impairment losses are recognised).

1.4 INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses.
The amortisation period and the amortisation method for intangible assets are reviewed at each reporting date.
Amortisation is provided to write down the intangible assets, on a straight-line basis, to their residual values as follows:
Item
Computer software

Useful life

Depreciation rate

2 years

50%

The estimated useful lives of intangible assets are reviewed at the end of each annual reporting period.
The gain or loss is the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount. It is recognised in
surplus or deficit when the asset is derecognised.
Where the carrying amount of an intangible asset is greater than its estimated recoverable service amount, it is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount (i.e. impairment losses are recognised).

1.5 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Initial recognition
The entity recognises a financial asset or a financial liability in its statement of financial position when the entity becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Financial assets
All financial assets of the entity are categorised as loans and receivables. The classification depends on the nature and
purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition.
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents are stated at amortised cost, which, due to their short-term nature, closely approximate their
fair value.
Financial assets at amortised cost
Trade receivables, loans, and other receivables that have fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market, are classified as “financial assets at amortised cost”. These financial assets are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less any impairment. Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate.

Annual Report 2014/2015

63

SECTION H | OUR FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE FOR 2014/2015
Effective interest method
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period.
Impairment of financial assets
Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at each year end.
Financial assets are impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the investment have been impacted. For financial
assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the impairment is the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original effective interest rate.
The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets, with the exception
of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an allowance account. When a trade receivable
is uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited against the allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in the
surplus or deficit.
Financial liabilities
All financial liabilities of the entity are classified as financial liabilities at amortised cost. The classification depends on the
nature and purpose of the financial liabilities and is determined at the time of initial recognition.
Other financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs.
Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, with interest
expense recognised on an effective yield basis.
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period.

1.6 TAX
No provision has been made for taxation, as the entity is exempt from income tax in terms of Section 10 of the Income Tax
Act, 1962 (No. 58 of 1962).

1.7 LEASES
Operating leases - lessee
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The difference between
the amounts recognised as an expense and the contractual payments are recognised as an operating lease asset or liability.
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1.8 INVENTORIES
Inventories consist of consumables on hand at the reporting date and are measured at cost.
An individual consumable purchase of which the cost does not exceed R1 000 is expensed, as it is expected that the item will
be utilised in the current financial year.

1.9 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
The cost of employee benefits is recognised during the period in which the employee renders the related service. Employee
entitlements are recognised when they accrue to employees. A provision is made for the estimated liability as a result of
services rendered by employees up to the reporting date.
Termination benefits are recognised and expensed only when the payment is made.
Liabilities for annual leave are recognised as they accrue to employees. The entity recognises the leave obligation during the
vesting period based on the best available estimate of the accumulated leave expected to vest. The liability is based on the
total number of leave days due to employees at year end and also on the total remuneration package of the employee. The
leave liability is recognised as an accrual.
No provision has been made for retirement benefits as the entity does not provide for retirement benefits for its employees.

1.10 PROVISIONS AND CONTINGENCIES
Provisions are recognised when:
•	The entity has a present obligation as a result of a past event;
•

It is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required to settle the 		
obligation; and

A reliable estimate can be made of the obligation.
•	
Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognised, but are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

1.11 REVENUE FROM EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS
Revenue from exchange transactions is recognised when it is probable that future economic benefits or service potential will
flow to the entity and these benefits can be measured reliably. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable.
Interest income is accrued on a time-proportionate basis, taking into account the principal outstanding and effective interest
rate over the period to maturity.

1.12 REVENUE FROM NON-EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS
Non-exchange revenue transactions result in resources being received by the entity, usually in accordance with a binding
arrangement.

Annual Report 2014/2015

65

SECTION H | OUR FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE FOR 2014/2015
When the entity receives resources as a result of a non-exchange transaction, it recognises an asset and revenue in the
period that the arrangement becomes binding and when it is probable that the entity will receive economic benefits or
service potential and it can make a reliable measure of the resources transferred.
Where the resources transferred to the entity are subject to the fulfilment of specific conditions, it recognises an asset and
a corresponding liability. As and when the conditions are fulfilled, the liability is reduced and revenue is recognised.
The asset and the corresponding revenue are measured on the basis of the fair value of the asset on initial recognition.
The following sources of receipts are considered revenue from non-exchange transactions
Department of Higher Education and Training (DHET)
The MTEF (Medium Term Expenditure Framework – 3 year rolling government budget) allocated funding, received from the
DHET.
National Student Financial Aid Scheme (NSFAS)
NSFAS makes loans and grants bursaries to academically able but financially disadvantaged students, to enable them to
meet the costs of studying at higher education institutions.
The NIHSS, through the National Skills Fund (NSF), appropriates and pays funds to NSFAS to implement and administer
student programmes on behalf of the NIHSS, per contract terms. The funds are kept by NSFAS in an interest-bearing call
account.
NSFAS keeps the accounting records of the funds.
The funds are rolled over each financial year, and any unspent funds are refunded to the NIHSS at contract end.
The final bank balance of NSFAS is recognised as a receivable from NSFAS and Deferred revenue (liability).
Only when the unspent funds are refunded to the NIHSS will they constitute revenue from non-exchange transactions

1.13 FRUITLESS AND WASTEFUL EXPENDITURE
‘Fruitless expenditure’ means expenditure that was made in vain and would have been avoided had reasonable care been
exercised.
All expenditure relating to fruitless and wasteful expenditure is recognised as an expense in the statement of financial
performance in the year in which the expenditure was incurred. The expenditure is classified in accordance with the nature
of the expense and, where recovered, is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the statement of financial performance.
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1.14 IRREGULAR EXPENDITURE
Irregular expenditure’, as defined in section 1 of the PFMA, is expenditure other than unauthorised expenditure, incurred in
contravention of or that is not in accordance with, a requirement of any applicable legislation, including:
(a) This Act; or
(b) The State Tender Board Act, 1968 (No. 86 of 1968), or any regulations made in terms of the Act; or
(c) Any legislation providing for procurement procedures.

1.15 RESERVES
Any surplus funds at the end of the financial year are retained and used for project expenditure in the new financial year.

1.16 RELATED PARTIES
Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise significant influence
over the other party in making financial and operating decisions, or if the related party entity or another entity are subject
to common control.
Where such a situation exists, the nature and type of transactions and relationships between parties are disclosed in the
notes to the Annual Financial Statements.

1.17 COMMITMENTS
Commitments are disclosed where the entity has, in the normal course of its operations, entered into a contractual
agreement with entities related to project expenses that are yet due for payment.

1.18 REPORTING PERIOD
The NIHSS was established on 05 December 2013. The financial period is a 16-month period from 05 December 2013–
31 March 2015.

1.19 COMPARATIVES
There are no comparatives for the 2014/2015 financial year.
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
2. GENERAL INFORMATION
The creation of the National Institute for the Humanities and Social Sciences (NIHSS), to dynamise these fields of study in
South Africa’s higher education system, emerged out of a wide-ranging consultative process inaugurated by the Minister of
Higher Education and Training, Dr Bonginkosi Blade Nzimande.
In 2010, the Minister of Higher Education and Training appointed a Task Team to develop a Charter for the Humanities and
Social Sciences.
This was aimed at affirming the importance of the humanities and the social sciences as forms of scholarship. The final
report of the Charter was submitted to the Minister on 04 August 2011. One of the key recommendations in that report was
the establishment of an institute for the promotion of the humanities and social sciences.
Guided by the overwhelming support of the recommendations from the stakeholders across the entire cultural divide and
for the establishment of the institute, in particular, the Minister then provided for establishment of the National Institute for
the Humanities and Social Sciences (NIHSS) through Government Gazette No. 37118 of 05 December 2013.

The scope of the NIHSS is that of advancing and coordinating scholarship, research and ethical practice in the fields of
the humanities and the social sciences within and through the existing public universities and those to be established or
declared in future as public universities.
The functions of the NIHSS are to:
(a) Provide services to the higher education sphere within the humanities and social sciences;
(b) Advance learning within its specific scope or application by ensuring collaboration, coordination, or collaboration and
coordination of the work of higher education institutions; and
(c) Advise the Minister of Higher Education and Training on matters relating to its specific scope or application, or higher
education generally.
The NIHSS was established on 05 December 2013. The financial period is over a 16-month period from 05 December 2013–
31 March 2015.
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3. NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
3.1 STANDARDS ISSUED, BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, there are standards and interpretations in issue but not yet
effective.
These include the following standards and interpretations that are applicable to the entity and may have an impact on
future financial statements:
Effective date:
Years beginning
Standard/ Interpretation:
• GRAP 20: Related parties

on or after
Not yet effective

Expected impact:
This standard prescribes the disclosure of relevant information to
draw attention to the possibility that the entity's financial position
and surplus/deficit may have been affected by the existence of
related parties.
It is not expected that this standard will significantly impact future
disclosures.

• GRAP 108: Statutory receivables

Not yet effective

This standard prescribes the accounting requirements for the
recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of
statutory receivables.
It is not expected that this standard will significantly impact future
disclosures.

3.2 STANDARDS NOT YET EFFECTIVE OR RELEVANT
The following standards and interpretations that have been issued but are not yet effective are not applicable to the
entity and will not have an impact on future financial statements:
Effective date:
Years beginning
Standard/ Interpretation:

on or after
Not yet effective

Expected impact:
No significant impact on future

Not yet effective

disclosures
No significant impact on future

• GRAP 105: Transfers of functions between entities under

Not yet effective

disclosures
No significant impact on future

common control
• GRAP 106: Transfers of functions between entities not

Not yet effective

disclosures
No significant impact on future

under common control
• GRAP 107: Mergers

Not yet effective

disclosures
No significant impact on future

• GRAP 18: Segment reporting
• GRAP 32: Service concession arrangements: Grantor

disclosures

Annual Report 2014/2015

69

SECTION H | OUR FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE FOR 2014/2015

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
4. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Cost
22 133
227 000
249 133

Office furniture and fittings
Office equipment
Computer equipment
Leasehold improvements
Total

2015
Accumulated
depreciation Carrying value
(689)
21 444
(31 327)
195 673
(32 016)
217 117

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2015
Opening
Office furniture and fittings
Office equipment
Computer equipment
Leasehold improvements
Total

balance
-

Additions
22 133
227 000
249 133

Disposals
-

Depreciation
(689)
(31 327)
(32 016)

Total
21 444
195 673
217 117

Gross carrying value

2015

Office furniture and fittings
Office equipment
Computer equipment
Total

21 444
195 673
217 117

5. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
2015
Accumulated
Cost
67 965

Computer software

amortisation Carrying value
(8 011)
59 954

Reconciliation of intangible assets - 2015
Opening
balance
Computer software

Additions
-

67 965

Amortisation
(8 011)

Total
59 954
2015

Gross carrying value
Computer software
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59 954

6. RECEIVABLES

2015

Receivables from exchange transactions
Interest receivable

10 129
10 129

Receivables from non-exchange transactions
DHET receivable (Operations)
DHET receivable (Awards NSF)
DHET receivable (Scholarships NSFAS)
DHET receivable (2012/2013 funding)

14 108 726
35 740 000
5 273 191
55 121 917
55 132 046

Total Receivables
The DHET receivable is the remaining funds due to the NIHSS from DHET.

7. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents consist of:
Bank balances
Total

3 174 929
3 174 929

8. PAYABLES
Trade and other payables from exchange transactions
Trade payables
Accrued leave pay

908 159
107 605
1 015 764

The carrying amounts of trade and other payables approximate their fair value due to the
short-term maturity of these financial liabilities.

Trade and other payables from non-exchange transactions
Trade payables (NSF)
Trade payables (NSFAS)

35 740 000
5 273 191
41 013 191
42 028 955

Total Payables
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
9. REVENUE
Investment revenue – Interest
Government funding
Total
The amount included in revenue arising from exchanges of goods or services is as follows:
Investment revenue – Interest
The amount included in revenue arising from non-exchange transactions is as follows:
Transfer revenue
Government funding

2015
93 024
38 822 359
38 915 383

93 024

38 822 359

10. EMPLOYEE-RELATED COSTS
Basic salaries
UIF
SDL
Project reimbursements
Per diem
Accrued leave pay
Total

3 035 987
14 074
30 360
687 666
17 272
107 604
3 892 963

11. PROJECT EXPENSES
Awards
Catalytic Projects
Heritage Hubs
BRICS Collaboration
Pan African South Collaboration
Awards
Evaluation Panels and Award Ceremony
Total Awards
Scholarships
Total Project expenses
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1 125 600
500 000
448 100
2 073 700
12 726 809
14 800 509

12. GENERAL EXPENSES

2015
239 838
113 370
9 230
1 581 003
16 238
21 201
388 106
103 343
500
37 600
1 024
82 384
7 037
968 710
73 133
3 642 717

Admin fees
Advertising and promotions
Bank charges
Consulting fees
Courier and postage
Printing and stationery
Rental (lease rental on operating lease)
Staff recruitment
Staff refreshments
Staff training
Start-up costs
Supplies and services
Telephone and fax
Travel and accommodation
Workshop costs
Total

13. INVESTMENT REVENUE
Investment interest at the beginning of the year
Net interest income received per income statement
Accrued net interest income at the end of the year
Investment income

82 895
10 129
93 024

14. NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
(Deficit) / Surplus for the year
Adjustments for:
Depreciation
Movements in operating lease assets and accruals
Changes in working capital:
(Increase) in inventories
(Increase) in receivables from exchange transactions
(Increase) in receivables from non-exchange transactions
Increase in payables under exchange transactions
Increase in payables under non-exchange transactions

16 429 393
40 027
129 960
(4 262)
(10 129)
(55 121 917)
1 015 764
41 013 191
3 492 027

15. COMMITMENTS
Accumulated surplus

16 429 393

The accumulated surplus and future DHET funding will fund the NIHSS operational costs.
Funding from the National Skills funds (NSF) will fund future project commitments.
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Project commitments
Projects for the year ended 31 March 2015 are funded by the NIHSS.
From 01 April 2015, all projects will be funded by the National Skills Fund (NSF)..
Contractual

Expenditure for

value at

the year ending

Contractual
value at

Institution/entity
University of the

Programme
Catalytic Projects CARPROJ9B

31 March 2014
250 000

31 March 2015
250 000

Witswatersrand
Chris Hani Institute
University of the Free State
Rhodes University
General Services Contract
University of the

Catalytic Projects CARPROJ8A
Catalytic Projects CAPROJ
Catalytic Projects CAPROJ6
Catalytic Projects NIHSSUJ
Catalytic Projects CRP 01508

350 000
100 000
410 000
15 600
950 000

350 000
100 000
410 000
15 600

Witswatersrand
University of KwaZulu-Natal
University of the Western

Catalytic Projects CRP 01501
Catalytic Projects CRP 01506

550 000
1 280 000

550 000
1 280 000

Cape
University of the

Catalytic Projects CRP 01509

835 992

835 992

Witwatersrand
University of Cape Town
University of the

Catalytic Projects CRP 01503
Catalytic Projects CRP 01510

999 224
680 000

999 224
680 000

Witwatersrand
University of Limpopo
University of the Western

Catalytic Projects CRP 01511
Catalytic Projects CRP 01502

780 000
992 000

780 000
992 000

Cape
Chris Hani Institute
University of the

Catalytic Projects CRP 01507
Catalytic Projects CRP 01505

891 000
524 680

891 000
524 680

Witwatersrand
Rhodes University
Stellenbosch University
University of Johannesburg
Walter Sisulu University
The Liliesleaf Trust

Catalytic Projects CRP 01504
Catalytic Projects CRP 01513
Catalytic Projects CRP 01514
Catalytic Projects CRP 01512
Humanities Hubs NIHSS-LF

1 547 000
100 000
100 000
100 000
1 500 000

500 000

1 547 000
100 000
100 000
100 000
1 000 000

6 232 003
19 187 499

1 625 600

6 232 003
17 561 899

ICSSR
TOTAL
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31 March 2015
950 000

16. RELATED PARTIES
Relationship
Controllong entity:
Entities under common control:
Members of key management :

Members of the Board:

Department of Higher Education and Training (DHET)
None
S Mosoetsa (CEO)
K Lephoto (CFO)
Prof. Aristides Sitas
Prof. Ahmed C Bawa
Dr Vukile Khumalo
Dr Pamela Maseko
Dr Bernard Nthambeleni
Prof. Nhlanhla Mkhize
Prof. Sam Moyo
Prof. Fiona Tregenna
Mr Alex Mashilo
Ms Luli Callinicos
Mr Ivor Baatjes
Prof. Rosemary Moeketsi

Related party balances

2015

Receivables
Department of Higher Education and Training (DHET)

55 121 917

Payables
Department of Higher Education and Training (DHET)

41 013 191

DHET-incurred accounting costs on behalf of the NIHSS for the 2014/2015 financial year (R 831 077).
Related party transactions
Transations
Revenue
Department of Higher Education and Training (DHET)

20 948 563

Remuneration - Members of key management
Aggregate remuneration (2 persons)

1 303 182

The senior management group consists of the NIHSS CEO and CFO. The aggregate remuneration of members of the senior
management group and the number of managers receiving remuneration within this category are disclosed above.
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
2015
Remuneration – Board members
Prof. Aristides Sitas
Prof. Ahmed C Bawa
Dr Vukile Khumalo
Dr Pamela Maseko
Dr Bernard Nthambeleni
Prof. Nhlanhla Mkhize
Prof. Sam Moyo
Prof. Fiona Tregenna
Mr Alex Mashilo
Ms Luli Callinicos
Mr Ivor Baatjes
Prof. Rosemary Moeketsi
TOTAL

20 000
10 000
12 665
10 000
7 500
5 000
10 000
5 000
12 500
14 500
107 165

The Board consists of members appointed in terms of Government Gazette No. 37118. Remuneration is paid to members.
The NIHSS has remunerated members of the Board for attending board and sub-committee meetings as disclosed above.
The transactions above occurred under terms that were no more favourable than those available in similar arm’s length
dealings.

17. RISK MANAGEMENT
The focus of risk management in the entity is on identifying, assessing, managing and monitoring all known forms of risk
across the entity.
While operating risk cannot be fully eliminated, management endeavours to minimise it by ensuring that the appropriate
infrastructure, controls, systems and ethics are applied throughout the entity and managed within predetermined procedures
and constraints.
As the entity acquires finance from the DHET and does not have borrowed funds, it does not have major exposure to credit,
liquidity, interest and market risk.
Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the entity will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. Ultimate responsibility
for liquidity risk management rests with the DHET, which has built an appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the
management of the NIHSS short-, medium- and long-term funding and liquidity management requirements.
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2014/15

6 months or

Payables from exchange transactions

less
1 015 764

6-12 months

1-2 years
-

-

Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party by failing to meet
an obligation.
Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, and deposits with banks and financial institutions, as well as outstanding
receivables and committed transactions. For banks and financial institutions, only highly reputable financial institutions
are used.
2015
The ageing of receivables from exchange transactions
Not past due

Gross
10 129

Impairment

The ageing of cash and cash equivalents
Not past due

Gross
3 174 929

Impairment

-

2015: Total
10 129

-

2015: Total
3 174 929

Market risk
No significant risk events occurred during the year in the market of which the NIHSS is aware.
Interest rate risk
The entity has limited exposure to interest rate risk. The entity’s cash and cash equivalents are subject to interest rate risk
for the portion of interest received. The interest rate risk is limited, as funds are invested with one of the four major banks
and this is assessed annually.

18. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE
During the course of the 2015/2016 financial year, the DHET will assess the remaining 2014/2015 funding allocation in
accordance with the 2014/2015 NIHSS business plan. This assessment will determine if the remaining receivable from
non-exchange transactions (note 6) will remain.
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
19. BUDGET DIFFERENCES
Notes to Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual amounts
Item
Investment revenue
Government funding

Reason
Interest was not budgeted for in the financial year.
Only R23 028 403 was received from the DHET. Further funding is to be received in the

Employee-related costs
Depreciation and amortisation
Repairs and maintenance
Project expenses
General expenses

next financial year.
Delay in the appointment of staff during the financial year.
Depreciation and amortisation is not budgeted for.
Delay in the award of tender for office space.
Delay in disbursement of grant to fund project expenses.
Delay in disbursement of grant to fund general expenses.

20. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS DISCLOSURE
Categories of financial instruments
2015
Financial assets

Receivables from exchange transactions
Receivables from non-exchange transactions
Cash and cash equivalents
Total

At amortised

Total

cost
10 129
55 121 917
3 174 929
58 306 975

10 129
55 121 917
3 174 929
58 306 975

At amortised

Total

cost
1 015 764
1 015 764

1 015 764
1 015 764

Financial liabilities

Trade and other payables from exchange transactions
Total
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21. CONTINGENCIES
The NIHSS is putting out an office space tender to occupy new premises from 01 November 2015.
The NIHSS will be at the current premises until 31 October 2015. The contract is extended on a monthly basis until new
premises have been secured.

22. FRUITLESS AND WASTEFUL EXPENDITURE
To the best of our knowledge, no fruitless and wasteful expenditure has been incurred during the period under review.

23. IRREGULAR EXPENDITURE
To the best of our knowledge, no irregular expenditure has been incurred during the period under review.

24. GOING CONCERN
There are no known instances that cast doubt on the ability of the NIHSS to continue as a going concern.
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ANNEXURE A
ACRONYMS
admin
APP
BRICS
CEO
CEPD
CFO
CODESRIA
CRP
DHET
FMPPI
HEI
HR
HSS
ICSSR
ISI
KPI
MISTRA
NDP
NIHSS
NMP
NSF
NSFAS
PAA
PAYE
PFMA
PhD
PMS
RU
SADC
SAHUDA
SARS
SCM
SDL
SU
UCT
UFS
UIF
UKZN
UNISA
UW
UWC
YTD

administration
African Pathways Programme
Brazil, Russia, India, China, and South Africa
chief executive officer
Centre for Education Policy Development
chief financial officer
Council for the Development of Social Science Research in Africa
Catalytic Research Programme/Project
Department of Higher Education and Training
Framework for Managing Programme Performance Information
higher education institution
human resources
humanities and social sciences
Indian Council of Social Science Research
Institute for Scientific Information
key performance indicator
Mapungubwe Institute for Strategic Reflection
National Development Plan
National Institute for the Humanities and Social Sciences
National Mentorship Programme
National Skills Fund
National Student Financial Aid Scheme
Public Audit Act
pay as you earn
Public Finance Management (Amendment) Act
Doctor of Philosophy
performance management system
Rhodes University
Southern African Development Community
South African Humanities Deans’ Association
South African Revenue Service
supply chain management
skills development levy
Stellenbosch University
University of Cape Town
University of the Free State
Unemployment Insurance Fund
University of KwaZulu-Natal
University of South Africa
University of the Witwatersrand
University of the Western Cape
year to date
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ANNEXURE B
CONTACT DETAILS:
Name of the public entity:

National Institute for the Humanities and Social Sciences

Office address:

2nd Floor
24 St Andrew Street
Parktown
2193

Postal address:

Postnet Suite 413, Private Bag X30500, Houghton, 2041

Telephone number:

+27 11 480 2300

Email address:

info@nihss.ac.za

Website address:

www.nihss.ac.za

External auditor:

The Auditor-General of South Africa

Banker’s information:

Standard Bank (Deloitte Consulting)
First National Bank Limited
Commercial Branch
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“At a deeper level, we also look to our social scientists, philosophers, historians,
artists & others to help us to rebuild our sense of nationhood, our independence
and our ability to take our place proudly in the community of nations.”
– Dr Bonginkosi Blade Nzimande,
Minister of Higher Education and Training
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